
CIBOLA COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

Jack Moleres                Robert Armijo     Robert Windhorst 

           Chairman                                 1st Vice Chairman      2nd Vice Chairman 

   

           Daniel Torrez                Martha Garcia  

          Commissioner                  Commissioner 
 

Regular Meeting 

January 26, 2017 at 5:00 p.m. 

Cibola County Commission Chamber 

700 East Roosevelt Ave, Suite 50 
 

1. Public Hearing for Comment on: 

a. Ordinance 2017-  Property Tax Rebate Ordinance for Low Income Taxpayers per NMSA 1978, 

§ 7-2-14.3 (G) (2003) 

 

2.  Call to Order 

3. Roll Call 

4. Pledge of Allegiance  

5. Prayer 

6. Approval of Agenda 

 

7. Consent Agenda - Action May Be Taken 

a. December 21, 2016 Regular Meeting   

b. January 5, Special Meeting   

c. Consideration of Resolution 17-08, A Resolution Establishing A Local Relocation, Residential 

Anti-Displacement, And Relocation Assistance Plan And Certification (Housing And 

Community Development Act, CDBG) 

d. Consideration of Resolution 17-09, A Resolution Establishing A Citizen Participation Plan 

e. Consideration of Resolution 17-10, A Resolution Establishing A Section 3 Plan 

f. Consideration of Resolution 17-11, Fair Housing  

 

8. Reports 

a. Monthly Sheriff’s Department Activity Report 

b. Monthly Detention Report 

a) PREA 

c. Monthly Road Department Report 

d. County Complex Remodel Expense Report 

 

9. Presentation 

a. Nextera 

b. Sheriff Tony Mace  

 

10. Public Comment 

The Public has the opportunity to provide comment at this time regarding any agenda item only. 

Your Comments will be limited to three minutes unless the Board of County Commissioners requests 

more information. The time limit is given in an effort to allow public input but also to move the agenda 

forward in a prompt yet efficient manner. 

 



11. Unfinished Business – Action May Be Taken 

a. Consideration of Resolution 16-48, Relating to the Use of Public Buildings or Properties, such as 

Community Centers, Meeting Rooms or Parks, by Individuals, Groups and Other Non-County 

Entities  

b. Consideration of Contract 

a) Global Contract 

b) Future Foundations After School Program 

 
 

12. New Business-Action May Be Taken 

a. Consideration of Resolution 17-04, Restructure of the Cibola County Commission 

b. Consideration of Resolution 17-07, Fiscal Year 2017 BUDGET ADJUSTMENT No. 2 

c. Consideration of Resolution 17-12, Maintained Mileage of County Roadways 

d. Consideration of Resolution 17-13, Inspection of Public Records Act 

e. Consideration of Resolution 17-14, Approving the Title VI Program 

f. Consideration of Resolution 17-15, Chief Deputy Pay 

g. Consideration of Resolution 17-16, Roberts Rules of Order 

h. Consideration of Resolution 17-17, NextEra Inducement 

i. Consideration of Delivery of Notice to Cibola Hospital, County Assessor, and Grants Cibola 

County School District Regarding Counties Consideration of the Bond Ordinance 

j. Consideration of Ordinance 17-01  Property Tax Rebate Ordinance for Low Income Taxpayers 

per NMSA 1978, § 7-2-14.3 (G) (2003) 

k. Consideration of Tony Mace to attend Annual Training and Business Conference March 5 - 

March 9, 2017 Peppermill Hotel & Casino, 2707 S. Virginia Street, Reno, NV 89502 

l. Consideration of Bid from Midwest Fire Luverne, MN in the amount of $210,312.00 

m. Appointment of Two Members to NWNMRSWA 

n. Appointment of Two Members to NWNMCOG 

o. Appointment of Two Members to Future Foundation Family Center 

p. Appointment of Two Members to JJAC 

q. Appointment of Two Members to Economic Development 

r. Appointment of Two Members to Cibola General Hospital Board 

s. Appointment of Two Members to Transit Authority 

 

 

 

13. Manager’s Report 
 

14. Comments 

a. Staff 

b. Commissioners 
 

 

15. Announcements 

The next Regular Commission Meeting will be held on Thursday, February 23, 2017 at 5:00 p.m. 

immediately following the Board of Finance Meeting in the Cibola County Commission Chamber 

Room, 700 East Roosevelt Ave, Suite 50 
 

16. Adjournment 
 



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 

Cibola County Ordinance 17-01 

Property Tax Rebate Benefiting Low-Income  

 Taxpayers  

PREAMBLE 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, § 7-2-14.3 (G) (2003) requires that the Board of County 

Commissioners of each County consider every odd-numbered year whether to pass an Ordinance 

rebating part of the property tax due from low-income taxpayers; and 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, § 7-2-14.3 (I) (2003), were this Ordinance to be passed, the County 

would be required to pay the amount of the loss of income tax revenue to the state for the 

previous taxable year attributable to the allowance of property tax rebates to taxpayers of Cibola 

County; and 

WHEREAS, the potential for loss to the County by virtue of it having to pay the State the 

amount of the loss of income tax revenue attributable to the allowance of property tax rebates to 

the taxpayers of Cibola County would be significant and the harm substantial provided the 

County’s very limited resources.    

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that the Board of County Commissioners of the 

County of Cibola adopts the Cibola County Property Tax Rebate Benefiting Low-Income 

Property Taxpayers Ordinance, as follows: 

ARTICLE I.  SHORT TITLE. 

     This Ordinance shall be referred to as the Cibola County Property Tax Rebate Benefiting 

Low-Income Property Taxpayers Ordinance. 

ARTICLE II.  DEFINITIONS. 

     For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following definitions shall apply unless the context 

clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 

Property Tax Liability.  The amount of property tax resulting from the imposition of the county 

and municipal property tax operating impositions on the net taxable value of the taxpayer's 

principal place of residence calculated for the year for which the rebate is claimed. 

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

Principal Place of Residence.  The dwelling owned and occupied by the taxpayer and so much 

of the land surrounding it, not to exceed five acres, as is reasonably necessary for use of the 

dwelling as a home and may consist of a part of a multidwelling or a multipurpose building and a 

part of the land upon which it is built. 

ARTICLE III.  GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

A. The tax rebate provided by this Ordinance may be claimed for the taxable year for which the 

return is filed by an individual who: 

 

(1) has his principal place of residence in Cibola County; 

(2) is not a dependent of another individual;  

(3) files a return; and  

(4) incurred a property tax liability on his principal place of residence in the taxable year.  

 

B. The tax rebate provided by this section shall be allowed for any individual eligible to claim 

the refund pursuant to Subsection A of Article III of this Ordinance and who: 

 

(1) was not an inmate of a public institution for more than six months during the taxable year;  

(2) was physically present in New Mexico for at least six months during the taxable year for 

which the rebate is claimed; and  

(3) is eligible for the rebate as a low-income property taxpayer in accordance with the provisions 

of Subsection D of Article III of this Ordinance.  

 

C. A husband and wife who file separate returns for the taxable year in which they could have 

filed a joint return may each claim only one-half of the tax rebate that would have been allowed 

on the joint return. 

 

D.  The tax rebate provided in this section is as specified in the following table: 

LOW-INCOME TAXPAYER'S PROPERTY TAX REBATE TABLE 

Taxpayer's Modified Gross Income Property Tax Rebate 

   But Not     

 Over  Over     

 $ 0  $ 8,000  75% of property tax liability 

 8,000  10,000  70% of property tax liability 

 10,000  12,000  65% of property tax liability 

 12,000  14,000  60% of property tax liability 

 14,000  16,000  55% of property tax liability 

 16,000  18,000  50% of property tax liability 

 18,000  20,000  45% of property tax liability 

 20,000  22,000  40% of property tax liability 

 22,000  24,000  35% of property tax liability. 

 

E. If a taxpayer's modified gross income is zero, the taxpayer may claim a tax rebate in the 

amount shown in the first row of the table. The tax rebate provided for in this section shall not 



Page 3 of 3 

 

exceed three hundred fifty dollars ($350) per return and, if a return is filed separately that could 

have been filed jointly, the tax rebate shall not exceed one hundred seventy-five dollars ($175). 

No tax rebate shall be allowed any taxpayer whose modified gross income exceeds twenty-four 

thousand dollars ($24,000). 

 

F. The tax rebate provided for in this section may be deducted from the taxpayer's New Mexico 

income tax liability for the taxable year. If the tax rebate exceeds the taxpayer's income tax 

liability, the excess shall be refunded to the taxpayer. 

  

G. No later than December 31 of the year immediately following the first year in which the low-

income taxpayer property tax rebate provided in the Income Tax Act is in effect for Cibola  

County, and no later than December 31 of each year thereafter in which the tax rebate is in 

effect, the Taxation and Revenue Department shall certify to Cibola  County the amount of the 

loss of income tax revenue to the state for the previous taxable year attributable to the allowance 

of property tax rebates to taxpayers of Cibola  County. The County shall promptly pay the 

amount certified to the department. If Cibola  County fails to pay the amount certified within 

thirty days of the date of certification, the department may enforce collection of the amount by 

action against the county and may withhold from any revenue distribution to the county, not 

dedicated or pledged, amounts up to the amount certified. 

  

 APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 26th day of January, 2017. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

______________________________              ______________________________ 
JACK MOLERES, CHAIRMAN     ROBERT ARMIJO, 1ST VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

 

_______________________________    ______________________________ 
ROBERT WINDHORST, 2ND VICE CHAIRMAN   MARTHA GARCIA, COMMISSIONER 
 

 

___________________________  

DANIEL TORREZ, COMMISSIONER 

 
ATTEST BY:   

 

 

____________________________________ 

MICHELLE E. DOMINGUEZ, COUNTY CLERK 

 

 





















 
RESOLUTION # 17-08 

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A LOCAL RELOCATION, 

RESIDENTIAL ANTI-DISPLACEMENT, AND 

RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN AND CERTIFICATION 
(HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT, CDBG) 

 

WHEREAS, The County of Cibola, New Mexico, hereinafter referred to as the locality, pursuant to Community 

Development Programs under the provisions of the Housing and Community Development  

Programs under the provisions of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, (public 

Law 93-383) and amendments thereto, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Act requires compliance with the relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation 

requirements of the Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 

hereinafter referred to as the Uniform Act, and implementing regulations issued  by the 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (49 CFR Part 24)  when the acquisition of real 

property occurs, and 

 

WHEREAS, the locality wishes to provide a local policy covering all probable types of relocation which may 

be necessary in accomplishing CDBG related activities, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Local Relocation, Residential Anti-displacement, and Relocation 

Assistance Plan & Certification as set forth in the attached Exhibit A, be herewith approved and adopted as the 

Policy of the County of Cibola, for CDBG purposes.  This Resolution supersedes Resolution No. 16-08. 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 26TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2017. 

 

 

     THE BOARD OF CIBOLA COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

      

     _______________________________________________ 

     Jack Moleres, Chairman 

 

     _______________________________________________ 

ATTEST:    Robert Armijo, 1st Vice Chairman 

 

     _______________________________________________ 

     Robert Windhorst, 2nd Vice Chairman 

_________________________ 

Michelle Dominquez   _______________________________________________ 

Cibola County Clerk   Daniel Torrez, Commissioner 

  

 _______________________________________________ 

     Martha Garcia, Commissioner 

 

 

 



 
Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan  

 
  

I. Background/Introduction 
 
Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended  (42 U.S.C. 
5304(d)(4)), Section 105(b)(16) of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 
12705(b)(16)), and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 42, specify that a grantee under the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) must certify that it has in effect and is following a 
“residential Anti-displacement and relocation assistance plan” (Plan).  As a CDBG grantee, Cibola County 
must certify to State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration Local Government 
Division that it has and is following such a Plan. 
 

The Plan must include three components: 1) one-for-one replacement requirements for lower-income 
housing units, 2) relocation assistance, and 3) a description of the steps Cibola County will take to 

minimize displacement.  
 
 

II. Activities Covered by the Plan  
 
All activities involving the use of CDBG funds that cause displacement as a direct result of demolition or 
conversion of a lower-income dwelling are subject to the requirements specified in the Plan. Activities 
for which funds are first obligated on or after September 30, 1988 are subject to the requirements 
specified in the Plan, without regard to the source year of the funds. 
 
 

III. Uniform Relocation Act  
 
The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended (URA) 
govern displacement that directly results from acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition of real property 
when federal funds are used.  Cibola County Residential Anti-displacement and Relocation Assistance 
Plan is in no way intended to supersede the URA.  CDBG assisted activities may still be subject to the 
requirements of the URA. 
 
 

IV. One-for-One Replacement Units  
 

All occupied and vacant occupiable lower-income dwelling units that are demolished or converted to a 
use other than as lower-income dwelling units in connection with an assisted activity must be replaced 
with comparable lower-income units. Replacement lower-income dwelling units may be provided by any 
governmental agency or private developer and must meet the following requirements: 
 

A. The units must be located within Cibola County to the extent feasible, the units shall be 
located within the same neighborhood as the units replaced 

 

B. The units must be sufficient in number and size to house no fewer than the number of 
occupants who could have been housed in the units that are demolished or converted.  The 
number of occupants who could have been housed in the units shall be in accordance with 
applicable local housing occupancy codes. The units may not be replaced with smaller units 
(e.g., a 2-bedroom unit with two 1-bedroom units), unless Cibola County has provided 



information demonstrating that such a proposed replacement is consistent with the needs 
assessment contained State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration Local 
Government Division HUD-approved Consolidated Plan. 

 

C. The units must be in standard condition and must at a minimum meet Section 8 Program 
Housing Quality Standards. Replacement lower-income units may include units brought from a 
substandard condition to standard condition if: 1) no person was displaced from the unit; and 
2) the unit was vacant for at least 3 months before execution of the agreement between  
Cibola County and the property owner. 

 

D. The units must initially be made available for occupancy at any time during the period 
beginning 1 year before the recipient makes public the information required under Section F 
below and ending 3 years after the commencement of the demolition or rehabilitation related 
to the conversion. 

 

E. The units must be designed to remain lower-income dwelling units for at least 10 years from 
the date of initial occupancy.  Replacement lower-income dwelling units may include, but are 
not limited to, public housing or existing housing receiving Section 8 project-based assistance 

 

F. Before Cibola County enters into a contract committing it to provide CDBG funds for any 
activity that will directly result in the demolition of lower-income dwelling units or the 
conversion of lower-income dwelling units to another use,  Cibola County must make public 
and submit in writing to State of New Mexico  
 
Department of Finance and Administration Local Government Division the following 
information: 
 

1 A description of the proposed assisted activity;  
2 The location on a map and number of dwelling units by size (number of 

bedrooms) that will be demolished or converted to a use other than for lower-
income dwelling units as a direct result of the assisted activity;  

3 A time schedule for the commencement and completion of the demolition or 
conversion;  

4 The location on a map and the number of dwelling units by size (number of 
bedrooms) that will be provided as replacement dwelling units.  If such data is 
not available at the time of the submission to State of New Mexico Department 
of Finance and Administration Local Government Division, the submission shall 
identify the general location on an area map and the approximate number of 
dwelling units by size, and information identifying the specific location and 
number of dwellings units by size shall be submitted and disclosed to the public 
as soon as it is available;  

5 The source of funding and time schedule for the provision of replacement 
dwelling units;   

6 The basis for concluding that each replacement unit will remain a lower-income 
dwelling unit for at least 10 years from the date of initial occupancy; and  

7 Information demonstrating that any proposed replacement of dwelling units 
with smaller dwelling units is consistent with the needs assessment contained in 
the State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration Local 
Government Division Consolidated Plan.  

 

G. The one-for-one replacement requirements may not apply if HUD determines, based on 
objective data, that there is an adequate supply of vacant lower-income dwelling units in 



standard condition available on a non-discriminatory basis within Cibola County.  In making 
such a determination, State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration Local 
Government Division will consider such factors as vacancy rates, numbers of lower-income 
units in Cibola County and the number of eligible families on the Section 8 waiting list. 

 
 
V. Relocation Assistance 

Each lower-income person who is displaced as a direct result of CDBG assisted demolition or conversion 
of a lower-income dwelling shall be provided with relocation assistance. 
 
Relocation assistance includes advisory services and reimbursement for moving expenses, security 
deposits, credit checks, other moving expenses, including certain interim living costs, and certain 
replacement housing assistance. 

 
Displaced persons have the right to elect, as an alternative to the benefits described in this Plan, to 

receive benefits under the URA, if they determine that it is in their best interest to do so.  The following 
relocation assistance shall be available to lower-income displacement persons:  
 

A. Displaced lower-income persons will receive the relocation assistance required under 49 CFR 
24, Subpart C (General Relocation Requirements) and Subpart D (Payment for Moving and 
Related Expenses) whether the person elects to receive assistance under the URA or the 
assistance required by CDBG regulations.  Relocation notices must be distributed to the 
affected persons in accordance with 49 CFR 24.203 of the URA; 

B. The reasonable and necessary cost of any security deposit required to rent the replacement 
dwelling unit and for credit checks required to rent or purchase the replacement dwelling 
unit; 

 

C. Actual reasonable out-of-pocket costs incurred in connection with temporary relocation, 
including moving expenses and increased housing costs, if: 

 
 
 

1. The person must relocate temporarily because continued occupancy of the 
dwelling unit constitutes a substantial danger to the health or safety of the person 
or the public; or  

2. The person is displaced from a lower-income dwelling unit, none of the 
comparable replacement units to which the person has been referred qualifies as 
a lower-income dwelling unit, and a suitable lower-income dwelling unit is 
scheduled to become available through one-for-one replacement requirements 

 

D. Replacement Housing Assistance.  Displaced persons are eligible to receive one of the 
following two forms of replacement housing assistance: 

 

1. Each person shall be offered rental assistance equal to 60 times the amount 
necessary to reduce the monthly rent and estimated average monthly cost of 
utilities for a replacement dwelling to the “Total Tenant Payment”, as determined 
under 24 CFR 813.107.  All or a portion of this assistance may be offered through a 
certificate or housing voucher for rental assistance under the Section 8 program.  
Where Section 8 assistance is provided to the displaced person, the Cibola County 
must provide the person with  
referrals to comparable units whose owners are willing to participate in Section 8  



program to the extent that cash assistance is provided, it will be provided in  
installments. 

2. In lieu of the housing voucher, certificate or cash assistance described above, the 
person may elect to receive a lump sum payment allowing them to secure 
participation in a housing cooperative or mutual housing association.  This lump 
sum payment shall be equal to the capitalized value of 60 monthly installments of 
the amount that is obtained by subtracting the  
 
“Total Tenant Payment”, as determined under 24 CFR 813.107, from the monthly 
cost of rent and average monthly cost of utilities at a comparable replacement 
dwelling unit.  To compute the capitalized value, the installments shall be 
discounted at the rate of interest paid on passbook savings in a federally insured 
financial institution conducting business within Cibola County. 

 
Displaced lower-income tenants shall be advised of their right to elect relocation assistance pursuant to 

the URA and the regulations at 49 CFR 24 as an alternative to the relocation assistance available under 

CDBG regulations.  
 
 
VI. Eligibility for Relocation Assistance 

 
A lower-income person is eligible for relocation assistance if they are considered to be a “displaced 
person” as defined in 24 CFR 42.305. A displaced person means a lower-income person who, in 
connection with an activity assisted under the CDBG program, permanently moves from real property or 
permanently moves personal property from real property as a direct result of demolition or conversion 
of a lower-income dwelling.   
 
For purposes of this definition, a permanent move includes a move made permanently and: 
 

A. After notice by the owner to move from the property, if the move occurs on or after the date 
of the submission of a request to Cibola County for CDBG assistance that is later approved for 
the requested activity; or 

 

B. After notice by the owner to move from the property, if the move occurs on or after the date 
of the initial official submission to HUD of the consolidated plan under 24 CFR Part 91 
describing the assisted activity; or 

 

C. Before the dates described in A & B above, if Cibola County or State of New Mexico 
Department of Finance and Administration Local Government Division determines that the 
displacement was a direct result of conversion or demolition in connection with a CDBG 
assisted activity; or 
 

D. By a tenant-occupant of a dwelling unit, if any one of the following three situations occurs: 
 

1. The tenant moves after execution of the CDBG agreement covering the 
acquisition, rehabilitation or demolition and the move occurs before the tenant is 
provided written notice offering the tenant the opportunity to lease and occupy a 
suitable, decent, safe and sanitary dwelling in the same building/complex upon 
completion of the project under reasonable terms and conditions, including a 
monthly rent and estimated average monthly utility costs that do not exceed the 
greater of the tenant’s monthly rent before such agreement, or the total tenant 



payment as determined under 24 CFR 813.107 if the tenant is lower-income, or 30 
percent of gross household income if the tenant is not lower-income. 

 

2. The tenant is required to relocate temporarily, does not return to the 
building/complex, and either is not offered payment for all reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the temporary relocation, or other 
conditions of the temporary relocation are not reasonable. 
 

3. The tenant is required to move to another dwelling unit in the same 
building/complex but is not offered reimbursement for all reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the move, or other conditions of the 
move are not reasonable. 

 
If the displacement occurs on or after the appropriate date described in A & B above, the lower-income 
person is not eligible for relocation assistance if: 
 

A. The person is evicted for cause based upon a serious or repeated violation of the terms and 
conditions of the lease or occupancy agreement, violation of applicable federal, State or local 
law, or other good cause, and Cibola County determines that the eviction was not undertaken 
for the purpose of evading the obligation to provide relocation assistance; 

 
B. The person moved into the property on or after the date described in A & B above after 

receiving written notice of the expected displacement; or 
 
C. Cibola County determines that the displacement was not a direct result of the CDBG assisted 

activity and the State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration Local 
Government Division concurs with this determination. 

 

 
VII. Minimizing Displacement  

 

The CDBG regulations regarding the demolition or conversion of lower-income dwelling units are 

designed to ensure that lower-income persons are provided with adequate, affordable replacement 
housing.  Naturally, involuntary displacement should be discouraged whenever a reasonable alternative 

exists.  Involuntary displacement is extremely disruptive and disturbing, especially to lower-income 
persons who do not have the means to locate alternative housing.  
 
There are various ways that displacement can be minimized.  The following are steps that will be taken 

to minimize the involuntary displacement of lower-income persons when CDBG funds are involved: 
 

A. Screening of Applications All CDBG applications will be reviewed to determine whether 

involuntary displacement is likely to occur.  Those applications involving displacement will 
receive a lower priority recommendation for funding unless it can be shown that alternatives 

are not available. 
 

B. Acquisition of Property Applicants who apply for CDBG funds to acquire property for the 

development of lower-income housing will be encouraged to purchase vacant land.  In the 
case of in-fill and other projects where this is not feasible and the project involves potential 
displacement, the applicant shall agree to allow the displaced lower-income person(s) to 

occupy the new housing at an affordable rent. 
 



Applicants who utilize CDBG funds to rehabilitate or convert a lower-income unit to a non-
residential use will be required to supply replacement housing consistent with paragraph IV, 

as well as relocation assistance. 
 

C. Cost of Relocation Assistance The cost of any required relocation assistance and the provision 

of replacement housing will be borne by the applicant and may be paid for out of CDBG funds 
awarded to the project. 

 
 

VIII. Definitions  
 

A. “Comparable replacement dwelling unit” means a dwelling unit that: 
1 Meets the criteria of 49 CFR 24.2(d)(1) through (6); and  
 
2 Is available at a monthly cost for rent plus estimated average monthly utility costs 

that does not exceed the “Total Tenant Payment” determined under 24 CFR 
813.107 after taking into account any rental assistance the household would 
receive.    

 

B. “Lower-income dwelling unit” means a dwelling unit with a market rental (including utility 
costs) that does not exceed the applicable Fair Market Rent (FMR) for existing housing and 
moderate rehabilitation established under 24 CFR Part 888. 

 

C. “Standard condition” means units that at a minimum meet the Existing Housing Quality 
Standards of the Section 8 rental subsidy program.   

 

D.  “Substandard condition suitable for rehabilitation” means units with code violations that can 
be brought to Section 8 Housing Quality Standards within reasonable monetary amounts. 

 

E. “Vacant occupiable dwelling unit” means a dwelling unit that is in a standard condition; a 
vacant dwelling unit that is in substandard condition, but is suitable for rehabilitation; or a 
dwelling unit in any condition that has been occupied (except by a squatter) at any time within 
the period beginning 3 months before the date of execution of the agreement by Cibola 
County covering the rehabilitation or demolition. 

 
 

IX. Grievances 
 

Cibola County will provide timely written answers to written complaints and grievances within 15 working 
days where practical.  Action items: 

 

A. Adopt complaint handling procedures or policies to insure that complaints or grievances are 
responded to within 15 days, if possible. 

 

B. Allow for appeal of a decision to a neutral authority. 
 

C. File a detailed record of all complaints or grievances and responses in one central location 
with easy public access. 

 
 

 



IX. Certification 
 
Cibola County herewith certifies to follow the Anti-displacement relocation plan described above and adopt 
the plan by resolution annually.  
 
Plan Adoption Date:   01/26/17 
 
Adoption Instrument:  Resolution 17-08 
 
Certified By:    ________________________  ________________ 
    Cibola County Commission Chair 
    Jack Moleres          Date  
 
 
 
Copy to Local Government Division with attachments 

 



  

 
Cibola County 

Resolution # 17-09    
 

A Resolution Establishing A Citizen Participation Plan 
 

WHEREAS, the Cibola County Board of Commissioners is duly-elected and governing 
body of Cibola County;  
 
WHEREAS, the Board recognizes the need for citizen participation in the planning, 
implementation and assessment of the Community Development Block Grant Program 
(CDBG); and 
 
WHEREAS, public involvement serves a key role in the development of projects for 
consideration by the Board. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners of 
Cibola County adopts and directs the County Manager to implement the attached Cibola 
County Public Participation Plan (Exhibit “A”).  This resolution supersedes 
Resolution 16-09.  

 
PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 26th day of January, 2017. 
 
           BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 
 
                                                                  _________ ________ 
              Jack Moleres, Chairman 
 
                                                            ________________________________ 
ATTEST:            Robert Armijo, 1St Vice-Chairman 
 
  __________              ________________________________ 
Michelle Dominquez                        Robert Windhorst, 2nd Vice-Chairman 
County Clerk 
           ________________________________ 
           Daniel Torrez, Commissioner 
 
           ________________________________ 

Martha Garcia, Commissioner 
 

 



  

            
EXHIBIT “A” 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION PLAN 

 
 
Introduction 
 
In accordance with the 1987 revisions to the Housing and Community Development Act 
and in an effort to further encourage citizen participation, the County of Cibola, has 
prepared and adopted this Citizen Participation Plan. 
 
Objective A 
 
The County of Cibola will provide for and encourage citizen participation within its area 
of jurisdiction, with particular emphasis on participation by persons of low and moderate 
income.  Action Items: 
 

1. Adopt and circulate an Open Meetings Resolution which provides citizens with  
 reasonable notice of County upcoming meetings, actions and functions. 
 
2. Develop press releases on County meetings, action and hearings and circulate to 
 newspapers, radio and television media. 
 
3. Develop and maintain listings of groups and representatives of low and moderate 
 income persons, and include on mailing lists of announcements, notices, press  
 releases, etc.    

 
Objective B 
 
The County of Cibola will provide citizens with reasonable and timely access to local 
meetings, information and records relating to the proposed and actual use of CDBG 
funds.  Action items: 
 

1. Public notices, press releases, etc. should allow for maximum length of notice to 
citizens. 

2. Appropriate information and records relating to the proposed and actual use of 
CDBG funds must be available upon request to all citizens.  Personnel and 
income records may be exempted from these requirements. 

3. Meetings, hearings, etc. should be conducted at times and locations conducive to 
public attendance, e.g., evenings, Saturdays.  
 

Objective C 
 



  

The County of Cibola will provide technical assistance to groups and representatives of 
low and moderate income persons that request assistance in developing proposals.  
Note:  the level and type of assistance is to be determined by the County.  Action Items: 
 

1. Low and moderate income groups should be advised that technical assistance 
particularly in the area of community development is available from the County 
upon request. 

2. Document technical assistance provided to such groups and has documentation 
available for review. 

 
Objective D 
 
The County of Cibola will provide minimum of two public hearings to obtain citizen 
participation and respond to proposals and questions at all stages of the Community 
Development Block Grant Program.  Action Items: 
 

1. Advice citizens of the CDBG Program objectives, range of activities that can be 
applied for and other pertinent information. 

2. Conduct a minimum of two public hearings: 
 

a. One public hearing will be held to advise citizens of the program 
objectives and range of activities that can be applied for, and to obtain the 
citizens views on the community development and housing needs, of low 
and moderate income people.  This hearing will take place prior to the 
selection of the project to be submitted to the state for CDBG funding 
assistance. 

b. A second public hearing will be held to review program performances, 
past use of funds and make available to the public its community 
development and housing needs, including the needs of low and moderate 
income families and the activities to undertaken to meet such needs. 

 
3. Publish public hearing notices in the non-legal section of newspapers or in other 

local media.  Evidence of compliance with these regulations will be provided with 
each CDBG application, i.e., hearing notice minutes of public meetings, lists of 
needs and activities to undertaken, etc.  Amendments for goals, objectives and 
applications are also subject to public participation.  

  
Objective E 
 
The County of Cibola will provide timely written answers to written complaints and 
grievances within 15 working days where practical.  Action Items: 
 

1. Adopt complaint handling procedures or policies to insure that complaints or 
grievances are responded to within 5 days, if possible. 

2. Allow for appeal of all decisions to a neutral authority. 
3. File detailed record of all complaints or grievances and responses in one 

central location with easy public access. 
 



  

 
 
 
Objective F 
 
The County of Cibola will identify how the needs of non-English speaking residents will 
be met in the case of public hearings where a significant number of residents can 
reasonably be expected to participate.  Action items: 
 

1. Identify areas where large majorities of non-English speaking persons reside and 
make appropriate provisions when issues affecting there areas are to be 
discussed at public meetings, hearings, etc.  Appropriate provisions will include 
having interpreters available at the meeting and having briefing material available 
in the appropriate language. 

2. Maintain records/rosters of public hearing attendees and proceedings to verify 
compliance with this objective. 

 



  

CIBOLA COUNTY SECTION 3 PLAN 
 
 
The County of Cibola is committed to comply with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act 

of 1968.  This Act encourages the use of small local businesses and the hiring of low income residents of 
the community. 

 
The County Of Cibola has appointed Debbie Gomez as the Section 3 Coordinator, to advise and assist key 

personnel and staff on Section 3, to officially serve as focal point for Section 3 complaints, and as the on-
site monitor of prime contractors and sub-contractors to insure the implementation and enforcement of 

their Section 3 plans.  The approval or disapproval of the Section 3 plan is the ultimate responsibility of 

the County Of Cibola.  Documentation of efforts will be retained on file for monitoring by the state. 
 

Therefore, the County Of Cibola shall: 
 

1.  Hiring          a. Advertise for all County positions in local newspapers 

 
b. List all County job opportunities with the State Employment Service 

 
c. Give preference in hiring to lower income persons residing in the County.  This 

means that if two equally qualified persons apply and one is a resident of the 
County and one is not, the resident will be hired 

 

d. Maintain records of County hiring as specified on this form 
 

 

 
ANTICIPATED Cibola County HIRING 2017___    
 
 PLANNED 0 

 
 ACTUAL 0 

 
 Job 

 Classification 

 
 # of  

 Positions 
 to be Filled 

 
 # of Positions to  

 be Filled by Lower 
 Income City or      

County Residents 

 
 # of  

 Positions 
 Filled 

 
 Positions Filled by 

Lower Income      
City/County Residents 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 Chart for Section 3 Plan MUST be filled out in its entirety. 

  



 
 
2.  Contracting 

 

a. The County Of Cibola will compile a list of businesses, suppliers and contractors located in the 
County Of Cibola. 

 
b. These vendors will be contacted for bid or quotes whenever the County Of Cibola requires 

supplies, services or construction. 

 
c. Preference will be given to small local businesses.  This means if identical bids/quotes are 

received from a small business located within the County Of Cibola and one from outside the 
County Of Cibola, the contract will be awarded to the business located within the community.  

 
3.  Training 

 

The County Of Cibola shall maintain a list of all training programs operated by the County Of Cibola and its 
agencies and will direct them to give preference to County Of Cibola residents.  The County Of Cibola will also 

direct all CDBG sponsored training to provide preference to County Of Cibola residents. 
 

4.   CDBG Contracts 

 
All CDBG bid proposals and contracts shall include the following Section 3 language. 

 
a.  The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a program providing 

direct federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and 
is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, 

as amended, 12 U.S.C. 170lu.  Section 3 requires that the greatest extent feasible, opportunities 

for training and employment be given lower income residents of the project areas, and contracts 
for work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns residing in the project 

area. 
 

b. The parties to this contract will comply with the provision of said Section 3 and the regulations 

issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development set forth in 24 CFR 
and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued there-under prior to the execution of 

this contract.  The parties to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or 
other disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 

 

c. The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which he 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, if any, a notice 

advising the said labor organization or workers' representative of his commitments under the 
Section 3 clause, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees 

and applicants for employment or training. 
 

d. The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in connection with 

the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for, or recipient of federal financial 
assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the subcontract upon a finding that the 

subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development, 24 CFR 135.  The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it 

has notice or knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR 

135, and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first provided it with the 
requirements of these regulations. 

 



e. Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 135, and all 

applicable rules and orders of the Department, issued thereunder prior to the execution of the 
contract, shall be a condition of the federal financial assistance provided to the project, binding 

upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, its successors and assigns.  Failure to fulfill 
these requirements shall subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its 

successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract 

through which federal assistance is provided, and to such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR 
135. 

 
The County Of Cibola shall require each contractor to prepare a written Section 3 plan as a part of their bids on 

all jobs exceeding $100,000.  All Section 3 plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City's Equal Opportunity 
Section 3 Compliance Officer and retained for monitoring by the state. 

 

The County Of Cibola will maintain all necessary reports and will insure that all contractors and subcontractors 
submit required reports. 

 
 LOWER INCOME CLARIFICATION 

 

 
A family who resides in County Of Cibola and whose income does not exceed the income limit for the size of 

family as per the attached Section 8 Income Limit for Cibola County.  Information contained in our Section 3 Plan 
reflects the status of the City/County employees regarding lower income considerations based on their salary paid 

by the City/County. 
 

 

 
_______________________________________ 

Jack Moleres-Commission Chairman 
 

 

01/26/17 
Date 

 
 



 
CIBOLA COUNTY 

RESOLUTION # 17-10 

 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A SECTION 3 PLAN 

 

WHEREAS,   the Cibola County Board of Commissioners is duly-elected and 

    governing body of Cibola County; and 

 

 WHEREAS,   the Board recognizes the need for a Section 3 plan in the planning,      

                                        implementation and assessment of the Community Development Block      

                                        Grant Program (CDBG); and 

 

 WHEREAS,   this act encourages the use of small local businesses in the hiring of  

                                        low income residents of the community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Cibola County   Commissioners adopts 

and directs the Cibola County Manager to implement the attached  

Cibola County Section 3 plan.  

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this January 26th, 2017. 

 
    THE BOARD OF CIBOLA COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

     

    ___________________________________________________ 

    Jack Moleres, Chairman 

 

Attest:     ____________________________________________________ 

                 Robert Armijo, 1st Vice Chairman 

 

__________________________      ____________________________________________________ 

Michelle Dominguez   Robert Windhorst, 2nd Vice Chairman    

Cibola County Clerk 

    ____________________________________________________ 

    Daniel Torrez, Commissioner 

 

    ___________________________________________________ 

                 Martha Garcia, Commissioner 

 

 

 

  



 

EXHIBIT 1-O-1 
 

                          Proclamation 
 
 WHEREAS, fair and equal housing is a right guaranteed to all Americans; and  
 

WHEREAS, the principle of fair and equal housing is a fundamental human entitlement; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, all citizens have the right to live where they choose within their financial 
means; and  

 
WHEREAS, people must not be denied housing because of race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, handicap or familial status; and  

 
WHEREAS, we must, as individuals, assure equal access to housing for all in our 
communities; and  

 
WHEREAS, Cibola County acknowledges the importance of assuring fair and equal 
treatment to all citizens; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE I, Jack Moleres, Cibola County Chairman,  

do hereby proclaim January 26th, 2017 as:  
 

“Fair Housing Day” 
 

 

 
Dated this 26th day of January, 2017 
 
___________________________ 
(Jack Moleres- Cibola County Chairman) 
 
 



EXHIBIT 1-O-2 
Fair Housing Self-Assessment 

 
 
 

COMMUNITY OF: COUNTY OF CIBOLA   
 
1. To the best of your knowledge has your community been involved in any complaints regarding 
discrimination the sale or rental of housing on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, 
familial status or handicap? 
 
  Yes  No 
 
2. If yes, give a brief description of the nature of any complaints and resolutions. 
 
  Yes  No         
        
3. Has your community adopted a Fair Housing Program to help local citizens be aware of their 
rights regarding fair housing under federal and state law, and in filing a complaint if discrimination is 
suspected? 
 
  Yes  No 
 
4. What do you perceive as the most potentially serious problem areas regarding discrimination in 
fair housing in your community? 
 

Problem Area Very Serious Serious Moderate Not a Problem 

Color       
Familial Status    

  
Handicap    

  
National Origin    

  
Race    

  
Religion    

  
Sex    

  
 

 
5.           Does your community contain any subsidized housing units? 
 

Yes  No 
 
 
6. As best as can be determined, do relevant public policies/practices regarding zoning and 
building codes have an adverse impact on the achievement of fair housing choice?   

 
Yes  No 



 
7. Are you aware of any practices in the local real estate community as it relates to buying, selling 
and house rentals that may adversely affect the achievement of fair housing choice in your community? 
 
  Yes  No 
 
8. Do your community records contain data on the actual number and percentage of persons 
residing in the community by race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap and familial status, 
as well as income characteristics by group? 
 
  Yes  No 
 
9. Is information available to you that list major local employers by type and the number of people 
employed within your community by salary and racial group? 
 
  Yes  No 
 
10. Is there public transportation available in your community? 
 
  Yes  No 
 
11. Do your community records contain data on the total number of housing units in the community 
by type, and the number of vacant units? 
 
  Yes  No 
 
12. Does your community contain any housing for the handicapped such as group homes, 
independent living complexes, etc.? 
 
  Yes  No 
 
13. Has your community participated in the CDBG program prior to 1993? 
 
  Yes  No 
 
14. Has your community been involved with any other state or federal programs that required the 
reporting of specific fair housing information? 
   

Yes  No 
 
 

            
Jack Moleres 
Cibola County Commission Chair     Date                                    



 
Cibola County 

Resolution # 17-11 
 

A Fair Housing Resolution 
 

A resolution of the Board of Commission of the County of Cibola, adopting a fair 
housing policy, making known its commitment to the principle of fair housing, and 
describing actions it shall undertake to affirmatively further fair housing. 
 
 WHEREAS; the Housing and Community Development act of 1974 as amended 
requires that all applicant for Community Development Block Grants funds certify that 
they shall affirmatively further fair housing; and   
 
 WHEREAS; the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (commonly known as the Federal Fair 
Housing Act) and the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 declare a national policy to 
prohibit discrimination in the sale, rental, leasing and financing of housing or land to be 
used for the construction of housing or in the provision of brokerage services, on the 
basis of race, color, religion, sex, disability, familial status or national origin; and  
 
 WHEREAS; fairness is the foundation of the American system and reflects 
traditional American values; and  
 
 WHEREAS; discriminatory housing practices undermine the strength and vitality of 
America and its people; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED THAT A resolution of the Board of 
Commission of the County of Cibola, hereby wish all persons living, working, doing 
business in or traveling through Cibola County to know that: discrimination in the sale, 
rental, leasing, and financing of housing or land to be used for construction of housing, 
or in the provision of brokerage services on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, 
handicap, familial status or national origin is prohibited by Title VIII of the Fair Housing 
Act Amendments of 1988; and that it is the policy of the County of Cibola to implement 
programs, with in the constraints of its resources, to ensure equal opportunity in housing 
for all persons regardless of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or 
national origin; and within available resources the County of Cibola will assist all 
persons who feel they have been discriminated against in housing issues on the basis 
of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or national origin to seek equality 
under existing federal and state laws to file a complaint with the New Mexico Attorney 
Generals Office or the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development; and that 



the County of Cibola shall publicize this Resolution and thereby encouraging owners of 
rental properties, developers, builders and others involved with housing to become 
aware of their respective responsibilities and rights under the Fair Housing 
Amendments Act of 1988 and any applicable state or local laws or ordinances; and that 
the County of Cibola shall undertake the following actions to affirmatively further fair 
housing:  

 
 Cibola County will advertise this resolution in a display in the local 

newspaper, The Cibola Beacon, in the Month of April 2017. 
 
 Cibola County will display the resolution on the county website from April 

2017. 
 

 Cibola County will provide Fair Housing Awareness material at housing 
awareness event in April 2017. 

 
  
PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 26th day of January, 2017. 
 
            

                                             BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 
 
 
                                                                 _________ ________ 
           Jack Moleres, Chairman 
 
                                                           ________________________________ 
ATTEST:         Robert Armijo, 1St Vice-Chairman 
 
  __________                   ________________________________ 
Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk Robert Windhorst, 2nd Vice-Chairman 
 
           ________________________________ 
           Daniel Torrez, Commissioner 
 
           ________________________________ 
           Martha Garcia, Commissioner 

 
 





Bookings Releases Male Female

237 209 193 38 Total 231

173 195  175 43 Total 219

206 39 245

Housing Collected in December 2016

Federal Transports Collected in December 2016

Medical Reimbursements & Fees

Total

DECEMBER 2016 COMMISSION REPORT

Bookings For December 2016 Daily Average Inmate Count for December 2016

Bookings For November 2016 Daily Average Inmate Count for November 2016

Highest facility count for the month of December 2016

Revenue Collected for December 2016

Rent paid for December 2016 $9,821.00 From State to General fundCo. Correctional  Fac GRT. $35,844.83 December 2016 For November 2016

$114,194.63

$6,408.36

All Other $2,193.23 Inmate Fees, Commissions, Other Revenue  Juvenile Care paid for December 

2016 $20,855.68

Juvenile's are currently held at the 

McKinley County Detention Correction Fees

$158,641.05

TOTAL BILLING DAYS FOR DECEMBER = 3,128

Paying December 2016 December 2016 Non Paying

County, City & Federal # of Inmates

Average # of 

Billing Days Billing Days Rate Total Non Paying # of Inmates

Average # of 

Billing Days

Billing 

Days Rate Total

City of Grants 63 4.9 309 65.00 $17,858.75 APPO 29 18.9 550 57.00 $21,745.50

Village of Milan 8 5.7 46 65.00 $2,730.00 Magistrate Court 147 9.6 1,413 57.00 $72,123.50

United States Marshals 106 23.5 2,498 50.13 $125,224.74 District Court 106 23.6 2,509 57.00 $129,789.00

Valencia County 0 0 0 75.00 $0.00 Totals 282 52.1 4,472 $223,658.00

Socorro County 1 19 19 75.00 $1,425.00

Rio Arriba County 9 21.2 191 75.00 $14,325.00

Catron County 0 0 0 75.00 $0.00

Mora County 2 19 38 75.00 $2,850.00

Kirtland Air Force Base 0 0 0 75.00 $0.00
Prisoner Transportation 

Services 18 1.5 27 75.00 $2,025.00

U.S. Corrections 0 0 0 75.00 $0.00

San Miguel County 0 0 0 75.00 $0.00
Gallup Mckinkey County 

Adult Detention 0 0 0 75.00 $0.00

Totals 207 94.8 3128 $166,438.49

JUVENILE DETENTION LISTING DECEMBER 2016 

FROM DATE TO DATE Man - Days Total Total Man - Days: 124

12/5/16 17:32 12/31/16 23:59 26 DAYS & 6.45 HRS. $4,597.02 Rate Per Day: $108.00

12/5/16 0:46 12/31/16 23:59 26 DAYS & 23.22 HRS. $4,719.27

12/1/16 0:00 12/31/16 23:59 31 DAYS $5,425.00 Total Due: $20,855.68

12/29/16 21:29 12/31/16 23:59 2 DAYS & 14.2 HRS. $368.23

12/8/16 19:22 12/9/16 9:35 14.2 HOURS $103.52
Year To Date

Month Amount

12/29/16 21:27 12/31/16 23:59 2 DAYS & 2.53 HRS. $368.44

July $14,959.49

August $17,091.09

12/1/16 20:40 12/31/16 23:59 30 DAYS & 3.32 HOURS $5,274.20
September $11,086.29
October $19,691.57

November $6,429.03
December $20,855.68
January

February

March 
April
May 

June

Total To Date: $90,113.15



Cibola County Detention Center 

1)

Dec-16 Released

2)

Dec-16 Male Female

3) For the month of DECEMBER, how many allegations of inmate-on-inmate NONCONSENSUAL SEXUAL ACTS were reported?

Dec-16 0

4) Of the allegations reported in item 3, how many were-

a. December 0

b. December 0

c. December 0

d. December 0

5) 

Dec-16 0

6)

a. December 0

b. December 0

c. December 0

d. December 0

7)

Dec-16 1

8)

a. December 0

b. December 0

c. December 1

d. December 0

9) 

Dec-16 0

10)

a. December 0

b. December 0

c. December 0

d. December 0

11)

Dec-16 1

12)

a. December 1

b. December 0

c. December 0

d. December 0

How many persons under the supervion of your facility were-

CONFINED/BOOKED/RELEASED in the month of April?

For the month of DECEMBER, what was the average daily population of your confinement facility?

Substantiated

Substantiated

Unsubstantiated

Unfounded

Investigation Ongoing 

For the month of DECEMBER how many allegations of inmate-on-inmate ABUSIVE SEXUAL CONTACT were reported?

Of the allegations reported in item 5, how many were-

Substantiated

Unsubstantiated

Unfounded

Investigation Ongoing 

For the month of DECEMBER how many allegations of inmate-on-inmate SEXUAL HARRASSMENT were reported?

Of the allegations reported in item 7, how many were-

Unsubstantiated

Unfounded

Investigation Ongoing 

Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) MONTHLY Reporting Data 

Unsubstantiated

Unfounded

Investigation Ongoing 

For the month of DECEMBER, how many allegations of STAFF SEXUAL HARASSEMENT were reported?

Of the allegations reported in item 11, how many were-

Substantiated

Unsubstantiated

Unfounded

Investigation Ongoing 

For the month of DECEMBER how many allegations of STAFF SEXUAL MISCONDUCT were reported?

Of the allegations reported in item 9, how many were-

Substantiated



To:
Fr:
Re: 

Road

C29

C41

C63

C15

C13

C30

C49

C19B

C5

C7

C6

C45

C44

C42

C10

C29

C28

La Mosca Tank Rd. 5.163

Bluewater Village - Sweep.

Sweep Smith's Parking Lot.

Camino De Turquesa - Snow removal.

Miles

5.053

Special Projects

Castillo Rd. - Put up signs.

Description

Back Country Byway - Snow removal.

Cubero Loop - Put up signs.

6.588

            56.600 

Bluewater South

Bibo-Moquino Roads - Haul 1 load of base course, install culverts.

15.427

4.242

Monday, January 9, 2017

Tony Boyd - County Manager
Gary Porter - Public Works Director
Monthly Report: 12/1/16 -12/29/16 (December)  

10.714

Plano Colorado

Pie Town Rd.

Regular Maintenance

Blade & Shape

3.482

5.931Anaconda Rd.

San Jose Loop

Seb-Bibo-Moquino Roads - Put up signs.

Total Miles

Zuni Canyon Rd. (Grants)

Rinconada Rd.

Porter Ranch Rd. - Snow removal.

Plano Colorado - Shoulder work.

A

u

d

Cibola County Road Dept.
515 W. High Street 

Grants NM 87020
505-285-2570 Phone    505-285 3656 Fax

 

      



C13

C33

C58

C30

C17

C19

C19B

C8

C18A

C47

C20

C41

C49

C41

Haul Millings from South 53.

Help El Morro Fire Station.

Mesa Ridge Rd. - Cut trees.

San Mateo Roads - Sweeping all chip sealed roads.

Pie Town Rd. - Fixing cattleguards.

Zuni Canyon Rd. - Cleaning culverts, snow removal.

Haul Items from State Yard.

Cantina Rd. - Install delineator posts.

La Mosca Tank Rd.

San Jose Loop - Repair road.

Encinal Rd. - Patching.

Co-op

Pie Town Rd. - Haul base course.

Candy Kitchen Rd. - Put up signs.

San Rafael - Haul base course, sweep ice & water off road.

Lobo Creek Rd. - Sweep all chip seal roads.

Bluewater South - Haul base course.

Mt. Taylor Addition - Cut trees - patching.

Special Projects - continued

      



Road Dept. 130 99.29 10 17.50$     274.29$             

Road Dept. 132 2.49 2 17.50$     37.49$               

Road Dept. 135 16.14 1 17.50$     33.64$               

Road Dept. 136 30.29 6 17.50$     135.29$             

Road Dept. 137 60.71 1.5 17.50$     86.96$               

Road Dept. 151 27.54 0.5 17.50$     36.29$               

Road Dept. 155 17.17 0.5 17.50$     25.92$               

Road Dept. 150 62.74 1 17.50$     80.24$               

TOTAL 710.12$      

Sheriff's G-78720 $195.16 16 17.50$     475.16$             

Sheriff's G-85514 $319.37 7 17.50$     441.87$             

Sheriff's G-88607 $54.91 2 17.50$     89.91$               

Sheriff's G-88608 $8.00 2 17.50$     43.00$               

Sheriff's G-90667 $104.74 2.5 17.50$     148.49$             

TOTAL 1,198.43$   

MAINTENANCE REPORT 

December 2016

A

u

d

Cibola County Road Dept.
515 W.  High Street

Grants NM 87020
505-285-2570 Phone      Fax 505-287-3656 

 



VEHICLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL. TOTAL COST

G-18461 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$                     

G-18473 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-18464 0.34 5.96 199 33.400 67.71$ 

G-02084 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-15638 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-29800 0.00 #DIV/0! 209 0.000 -$ 

G-29091 0.51 4.01 123 30.700 62.92$ 

G-23696 0.13 15.67 141 9.000 18.46$ 

G-23697 0.09 21.87 1,793 82.000 166.81$ 

G-39980 0.27 7.68 169 22.000 45.10$ 

G-39988 0.19 10.72 552 51.500 104.97$ 

G-57384 0.17 11.78 1,425 121.000 244.10$ 

G-57619 0.25 7.82 115 14.700 29.31$ 

G-57618 0.18 11.36 217 19.100 39.15$ 

146 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-66164 0.30 6.92 N/U 11.700 23.98$ 

G-66165 0.19 10.85 N/U 16.500 33.83$ 

G-70482 0.14 14.53 632 43.500 89.78$ 

G-78718 0.15 13.46 1,884 140.000 283.38$ 

G-64239 0.00 #DIV/0! 97 0.000 -$ 

G-86952 0.14 15.00 195 13.000 26.64$ 

G-86953 0.07 30.56 1,751 57.300 114.92$ 

G-86954 0.11 17.95 535 29.800 61.09$ 

G-91750 0.14 14.51 1,110 76.500 155.36$ 

G-34769 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

503 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

Extra card #DIV/0! 0.00 0 4.400 9.11$ 

UNLEADED

FUEL REPORT - CIBOLA COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT  

December 2016

Cibola County Road Dept.
515 W.  High Street

Grants NM 87020
505-285-2570 Phone       505-287-3656 Fax

 



776.100 1,576.62$ TOTAL GAS



VEHICLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL. TOTAL COST

G-50237 0.00 #DIV/0! 156 0.000 -$ 

G-18484 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-18476 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-18795 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-30550 0.32 6.39 769 120.400 249.18$ 

G-30549 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

G-38441 0.67 3.02 97 32.100 65.06$ 

G-67372 0.31 6.58 698 106.100 216.68$ 

G-67371 0.37 5.51 1,600 290.500 598.03$ 

G-70782 0.41 5.03 1,788 355.700 732.15$               

Distributor #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$                     

Water Truck #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$                     

New Transport 0.51 4.41 1,361 308.500 697.18$               

305 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

306 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

307 14.61 0.14 16 111.500 233.83$ 

308 0.00 #DIV/0! 31 0.000 -$ 

309 0.00 #DIV/0! 7 0.000 -$ 

310 6.01 0.36 5 14.000 30.03$ 

311 5.08 0.40 24 59.400 121.91$ 

312 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

313 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

314 2.40 0.88 42 48.000 100.70$ 

416 8.53 0.25 40 162.600 341.25$ 

417 8.57 0.24 74 306.100 633.89$ 

418 3.73 0.55 78 140.600 291.30$ 

501 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

Extra card #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 -$ 

2055.500 4,311.19$     

*N/U = NOT USED      

TOTAL DIESEL

DIESEL FUEL



VEHCLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL TOTAL COST

G-85515 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-85514 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

 G-61113 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-68384 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-68920 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-68922 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-68921 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-68418 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-72224 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-72225 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-75188 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-78152 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-78153 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

FUEL REPORT CIBOLA COUNTY BY DEPARTMENT

December 2016

SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

A

u

d

r

e

Cibola County Road Dept.
515 W. High Street

Grants NM 87020
505-285-2570 Phone        505-287-3656 Fax

 



G-78154 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-78717 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-78720 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-78721 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-78722 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-78723 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-86096 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-86996 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-85471 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

A-190-ULS #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-88607 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-88606 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-88608 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-88605 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

Max Pro 
Armored Truck #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-90204 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-90205 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

3035 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

4479 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

4481 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

207902 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

259 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

443 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

445 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

9058 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               



2219 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-97570 $0.30 7.59 1,080 142.240 327.29$          

142.240 327.29$          

VEHCLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL TOTAL COST

7466 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

0.000 -$               

VEHCLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL TOTAL COST

G60137 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

0.000 -$               

VEHCLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL TOTAL COST

G-86167 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

0.000 -$               

VEHCLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL TOTAL COST

G-67587 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

0.000 -$               

I.T.(DATA PROCESSING)

TOTAL SHERIFF'S

MANAGERS

TOTAL MANAGERS

RURAL ADDRESSING

TOTAL RURAL ADDRESSING

TOTAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

TOTAL BUILDING & GROUNDS

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

BUILDING & GROUNDS



VEHCLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL TOTAL COST

G-90878 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-53547 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

0.000 -$               

VEHCLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL TOTAL COST

G-78714 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-78715 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-81964 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

0.000 -$               

VEHICLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL TOTAL COST

G-60185 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-24336 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-57383 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-59969 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-60180 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-61368 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-63072 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-73152 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-78719 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-79636 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-79879 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

ASSESSORS

TOTAL ASSESSORS

TOTAL DATA PROCESSING

DETENTION



G-85729 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

Van #9 (new) #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

X-tra Card #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

0.000 -$               

VEHCLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL TOTAL COST

G-18474 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

0.000 -$               

VEHCLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL TOTAL COST

G-70403 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0 -$               

Generator #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0 -$               

0.000 -$               

VEHCLE # COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL TOTAL COST

G-64240 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G55649 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-72255 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-86995 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

0.000 -$               

CLERKS OFFICE 

ROAD DEPT.   MOTORPOOL

CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH

DWI PROGRAM

TOTAL CLERKS

TOTAL DETENTION

TOTAL ROAD DEPT. MOTORPOOL

TOTAL CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH



G-53823 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-45051 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

G-85669 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 -$               

0.000 -$               

*DNTI = DID NOT TURN IN / *N/U = NOT USED

TOTAL DWI PROGRAM



1/3/2017 9:47:58 AM Page 1 of 3

Detail Report with Activity and Encumbrance
Cibola County, NM Account Detail

Date Range: 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016

Account Name

Beginning
Balance

Beginning
Enc. Balance

Total
Activity

Ending
Balance

Total
Enc. Activity

Ending
Enc. Balance

Fund: 563 - CONSTRUCTION FUND

PROFESSIONAL SERV. 6,943,413.81 1,776,016.41 -842,220.17915,344.88 7,858,758.69 933,796.24563-085-445-00101

Post Date Description AmountNumberPacket Number Project Account Running Balance Encumbrance Running Balance

CONSTRUCTION BASE PLUS ALTERTNATES12/05/2016 306,572.9416POPKT01569 7,249,986.75

Payment Number: 87008Vendor: 28588 - JAYNES CORPORATION

PRE-CONSTRUCTION OPEN PO12/05/2016 39737A-R1 -306,572.94 1,469,443.47

Vendor: JAYNES CORPORATION - 28588

PRE-CONSTRUCTION OPEN PO12/05/2016 39737A-R1 -368,303.74 1,101,139.73

Vendor: JAYNES CORPORATION - 28588

PRE-CONSTRUCTION OPEN PURCHASE ORDER12/05/2016 426,475.1416POPKT01569 7,676,461.89

Payment Number: 87008Vendor: 28588 - JAYNES CORPORATION

ADDITIONAL MICROPHONE12/07/2016 785.00# 2-40862POPKT01582 7,677,246.89

Payment Number: 87015Vendor: 28892 - MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC

ELECTRICAL ROUGH-IN12/07/2016 40862 -785.00 1,100,354.73

Vendor: MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC - 28892

DATA DROP IN LOBBY AT 700 E. ROOSEVELT12/07/2016 805.00#2-40861POPKT01578 7,678,051.89

Payment Number: 87015Vendor: 28892 - MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC

DATA DROP IN LOBBY OF NEW BLDG 700 E ROOSEVELT12/07/2016 40861 -805.00 1,099,549.73

Vendor: MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC - 28892

CATV CABLING12/07/2016 2,980.00# 2-40862POPKT01582 7,681,031.89

Payment Number: 87015Vendor: 28892 - MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC

ELECTRICAL ROUGH-IN12/07/2016 40862 -2,980.00 1,096,569.73

Vendor: MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC - 28892

BACKBONE CABLING12/07/2016 9,571.00# 2-40862POPKT01582 7,690,602.89

Payment Number: 87015Vendor: 28892 - MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC

ELECTRICAL ROUGH-IN12/07/2016 40862 -9,571.00 1,086,998.73

Vendor: MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC - 28892

BOND/NMGRT12/07/2016 15,047.85# 2-40862POPKT01582 7,705,650.74

Payment Number: 87015Vendor: 28892 - MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC

CAT 6 TERMINATIONS/TESTING12/07/2016 16,809.00# 2-40862POPKT01582 7,722,459.74

Payment Number: 87015Vendor: 28892 - MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC

ELECTRICAL ROUGH-IN12/07/2016 40862 -16,809.00 1,070,189.73



Detail Report with Activity and Encumbrance Date Range: 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016

1/3/2017 9:47:58 AM Page 2 of 3

Account Name

Beginning
Balance

Beginning
Enc. Balance

Total
Activity

Ending
Balance

Total
Enc. Activity

Ending
Enc. Balance

PROFESSIONAL SERV.  -  Continued 6,943,413.81 1,776,016.41 -842,220.17915,344.88 7,858,758.69 933,796.24563-085-445-00101

Post Date Description AmountNumberPacket Number Project Account Running Balance Encumbrance Running Balance

Vendor: MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC - 28892

CAMERA SYSTEM DETENTION AREA12/07/2016 29,584.80# 2-40862POPKT01582 7,752,044.54

Payment Number: 87015Vendor: 28892 - MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC

ELECTRICAL ROUGH-IN12/07/2016 40862 -29,584.80 1,040,604.93

Vendor: MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC - 28892

COMMISSION ROOM BASE SOUND AND AV12/07/2016 37,772.00# 2-40862POPKT01582 7,789,816.54

Payment Number: 87015Vendor: 28892 - MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC

ELECTRICAL ROUGH-IN12/07/2016 40862 -37,772.00 1,002,832.93

Vendor: MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC - 28892

DOOR ACCESS CONTROL (SECURE AREA)12/07/2016 68,243.70# 2-40862POPKT01582 7,858,060.24

Payment Number: 87015Vendor: 28892 - MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC

ELECTRICAL ROUGH-IN12/07/2016 40862 -68,243.70 934,589.23

Vendor: MCDADE-WOODCOCK INC - 28892

TAX12/20/2016 13.512459POPKT01588 7,858,073.75

Payment Number: 87065Vendor: 28629 - APIC SOLUTIONS, INC

SEPTEMBER 25, 201512/20/2016 39866-R1 -108.04 934,481.19

Vendor: APIC SOLUTIONS, INC - 28629

LABOR12/20/2016 171.502459POPKT01588 7,858,245.25

Payment Number: 87065Vendor: 28629 - APIC SOLUTIONS, INC

SEPTEMBER 25, 201512/20/2016 39866-R1 -171.50 934,309.69

Vendor: APIC SOLUTIONS, INC - 28629

VIDEO SURVEILLANCE EQUIP HEALTH CENTER12/20/2016 513.442459POPKT01588 7,858,758.69

Payment Number: 87065Vendor: 28629 - APIC SOLUTIONS, INC

SEPTEMBER 25, 201512/20/2016 39866-R1 -513.45 933,796.24

Vendor: APIC SOLUTIONS, INC - 28629

Total Fund: 563 - CONSTRUCTION FUND: 6,943,413.81 7,858,758.69915,344.88 1,776,016.41 933,796.24-842,220.17

Grand Totals: 6,943,413.81 7,858,758.69915,344.88 1,776,016.41 933,796.24-842,220.17



Detail Report with Activity and Encumbrance Date Range: 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016

1/3/2017 9:47:58 AM Page 3 of 3

Fund Summary

Fund

Beginning
Balance

Beginning
Enc. Balance

Total
Activity

Ending
Balance

Total
Enc. Activity

Ending
Enc. Balance

563 - CONSTRUCTION FUND 6,943,413.81 7,858,758.69915,344.88 1,776,016.41 933,796.24-842,220.17

Grand Total: 6,943,413.81 7,858,758.69915,344.88 1,776,016.41 933,796.24-842,220.17



1.11.17 Draft 

 
 

FINANCING SCHEDULE 

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO  

NEXTERA ENERGY 

$75,000,000 Maximum Principal Amount  

Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds 

Series [2017] 

 

 
JANUARY 2017   FEBRUARY 2017 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7      1 2 3 4 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14   5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21   12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28   19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

29 30 31       26 27 28     

 
MARCH 2017   APRIL 2017 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

   1 2 3 4         1 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11   2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18   9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25   16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

25 26 27 28 30 31    23/30 24 25 26 27 28 29 

 
MAY 2017   JUNE 2017 

S M T W T F S   S M T W T F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6       1 2 3 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13   4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20   11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27   18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

28 29 30 31      25 26 27 28 29 30  

 

Governing Body Meeting Dates (4th Wednesday of each  

  Month) 

 

DATE ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTIES 

 

Thursday,  

December 22, 2016 

 

 

Distribute financing schedule and draft Inducement 

Resolution 

 

Modrall Sperling 

 

 

Thursday, 

December 29, 2016 

 

 

Distribute 30-day notice letters to taxing jurisdictions 

to NextEra and County for review 

 

Modrall Sperling 

 

 



 2 

DATE ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTIES 

 

Wednesday,  

January 4, 2017 

 

 

Comments due on draft Inducement Resolution and 30-

day notice letters 

 

NextEra 

Modrall Sperling 

 

Thursday,  

January 5, 2017 

 

 

Distribute draft Inducement Resolution and 30-day 

notice letters to County Manager for comment 

 

NextEra 

Modrall Sperling 

 

Monday,  

January 16, 2017 

 

 

 

Conference call to discuss comments from County on 

draft Inducement Resolution and 30-day notice letters; 

Distribute revised drafts  

 

 

County  

NextEra 

Modrall Sperling 

 

Thursday, 

January 19, 2017 

 

 

Distribute draft IRB Authorizing Ordinance to NextEra  

 

Modrall Sperling 

 

Monday,  

January 23, 2017 

 

 

 

Send 30-day notices of proposed adoption of IRB 

Ordinance to all taxing jurisdictions in which project 

property is located 

 

Modrall Sperling 

County 

 

Tuesday, 

January 24, 2017 

 

 

Distribute draft Lease Agreement, Indenture and Bond 

Purchase Agreement  to NextEra  

 

Modrall Sperling 

 

Thursday , 

January 26, 2017  

At 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

Board of County Commissioners adopts Inducement 

Resolution 

 

County 

 

Friday,  

January 27, 2017 

 

 

 

Comments due from NextEra on draft IRB Ordinance, 

Lease Agreement, Indenture and Bond Purchase 

Agreement 

 

NextEra 

Modrall Sperling 

 

Tuesday,  

January 31, 2017 

(before 4 p.m.) 

 

Submit Notice of Public Hearing and Intent to Adopt 

IRB Ordinance to the Cibola County Beacon for 

publication on Friday, February 3, 2017 

 

 

Modrall Sperling 

 

Friday,  

February 3, 2017 

 

 

Distribute draft IRB Ordinance, Lease Agreement, 

Indenture and Bond Purchase Agreement to County 

 

 

Modrall Sperling 

 



 3 

DATE ACTION 
RESPONSIBLE 

PARTIES 

 

Friday,  

February 3, 2017 

 

 

Notice of Public Hearing and Intent to Adopt IRB 

Ordinance published in the Albuquerque Journal 

 

 

Newspaper 

 

Wednesday,  

February 8, 2017 

 

 

 

 

Distribute revised drafts of IRB Ordinance, Lease 

Agreement, Indenture and Bond Purchase Agreement 

to County for February 22, 2017 County Commission 

Meeting agenda packets 

 

Modrall Sperling 

 

Thursday, 

February 23, 2017 

5:00 p.m. 

 

 

County Commission adopts IRB Ordinance  

 

County 

Modrall Sperling 

 

 

Thursday,  

February 24, 2017 

 

 

Submit Notice of Adoption of IRB Ordinance to the for 

publication in the Monday, February 27, 2017 edition 

 

 

Modrall Sperling 

 

Monday,  

February 27, 2017 

 

 

Notice of Adoption of Bond Ordinance publishes 

 

 

Newspaper 

 

Thursday, 

March 30, 2017 

 

 

30-day Limitation of Action Period expires  

 

 

County 

Modrall Sperling 

 

Friday,  

_____________, 20__ 

 

 

 

Distribute draft Closing Documents 

 

 

Modrall Sperling 

 

Friday,  

_____________, 20__ 

 

 

Comments due on Closing Documents 

 

 

All 

 

Week of  

_____________, 20__ 

 

 

Pre-Closing, Document Signing  

 

 

All 

 

Friday, 

_____________, 20__ 

 

 

Signed Closing Documents delivered to Modrall 

Sperling 

 

All 

 

Friday, 

_____________, 20__ 

 

 

Closing (by telephone); record lease  

 

 

All 



 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
S:\DOX\CLIENT\53005\1458\S0065903.DOC 



 
Cibola County 

Board of County Commissioners 

Resolution 16-48  

 

A Resolution 

Relating to the Use of Public Buildings or Properties, such as 

Community Centers, Meeting Rooms or Parks, by Individuals, 

Groups and Other Non-County Entities 

 
 WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-18-1 (1972) provides that municipalities, and also 

counties pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995), have the power to “protect generally 

the property of its municipality and its inhabitants” and to “preserve peace and order”; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-13 (1876) provides that the Board of County 

Commissioners shall have power at any session to make such orders concerning the property 

belonging to the County as they may deem expedient; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-16 (1876) provides that the Board of County 

Commissioners shall have power to build and keep in repair all County buildings; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 30-20-13 (1981) prohibits the interference with 

members of staff, public officials or the general public on County property, trespass and damage 

to County property and provides for penalties; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has determined that the health, safety 

and general welfare of residents of Cibola County, and the efficient, safe and orderly conduct of 

County business by County officials, employees, service-providing organizations and members 

of the public would best be served by the adoption of a policy regulating conduct within County 

buildings, such as community centers, utilized for non-County events or activities. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the governing body of Cibola County 

establishes this policy regulating use and conduct within County buildings for non-County events 

and activities, as follows: 



I. INTENT OF POLICY 

A.  The intent of this policy is to regulate conduct within County-owned or leased 

buildings or facilities, so as to promote the efficient, safe, and orderly use of County 

buildings or properties, including community centers,  senior centers, and fire stations, 

for non-county events or activities by County officials, employees, service-providing 

organizations and members of the public. 
 

B. This policy prescribes the rules and regulations under which County-owned 

buildings or property may be made available for use by community organizations, 

service-providing organizations, or individuals and groups. 
 

C.  Questions concerning the interpretation of this policy will be referred to the 

County Manager or his/her designee. 

II.  PRIMARY USE 

 

Cibola County buildings and properties are first and foremost for the use of residents of the 

County.  When a building or property is not in use by a program administered by the County, the 

State, or the United States government, (depending on specific funding or grant/loan restrictions) 

for the benefit of Cibola County residents, the facilities may be reserved by individuals, social 

groups, educational groups, service-providing groups, hobby, civic, cultural, community service 

organizations, and religious groups.   

III.  APPROVED PERMITS 

A. Permission for use of a County building or property is granted upon the condition 

that all rules and regulations governing the use of the facility shall be followed, as 

permission may be revoked at any time for failure to do so.  
 



B.   Individuals, social groups, educational groups, service-providing groups, hobby, 

civic, cultural, community service organizations, and religious groups wishing to use a 

County building or property must make application (see Exhibit A) at least five (5) 

working days in advance of the proposed date of use.  

C.  The Board of County Commissioners will sponsor all governmental, educational, 

cultural, and instructional public events, provided that they are open to all county 

residents, not political, advertised, and that they constitute a low-risk event as defined by 

the Tenant Users Liability Insurance Program (“TULIP”), provided that a release is 

executed by the organizer of the event. The form of release is enclosed as Exhibit C to 

this Resolution.   

 
D.  Permits are issued on a first come, first served basis for non-governmental 

functions.  Permission will depend on availability of staff and space. 
 

E.  All permits shall be applied for and issued by the County upon recommendation 

by the Maintenance Director or his/her designee.   A permit denial is appealable to the 

Board of County Commissioners pursuant to the appeals process set forth in Section 

154.062.   
 

F.  A refundable clean-up and security deposit must accompany the application.  The 

application will not be issued if it is missing.  Reservation of the date and facility will not 

be made until the completed application and deposit are received.  The Certificate of 

Insurance should accompany the application.  However, if this is not possible, the 

Certificate of Insurance must be on file with the County at least two (2) days prior to the 

event. 

G.  The County Manager or his/her designee has the right to revoke any permit due 

to unforeseen circumstances, or infractions of the policies.  A revocation of the permit 

may be appealed to the Board of County Commissioners pursuant to the appeals process 

set forth in Section 154.062. 

   

H.  The Board of County Commission may appoint residents from the Community to open/ 

close facility and advise the County Manager/ Maintenance Director of any events being 

held. The keys for the Community will centralized in the Maintenance Director or his/ 

her designee.   

IV. FEES 

 



All individual and group (see Exhibit A) events and activities will be required to 

compensate Cibola County and its residents for use of County facilities, except as 

otherwise provided in Section III(C) of this Policy.  Compensation will include some or 

all of the following components: 

 Cleaning/Damage Deposit (refundable) 

 Open/Closing Fee (non-refundable) 

 Activity Rental Fee (per day/per hour/per activity) for all private uses (non-

refundable) 

TULIP Insurance Cost (non-refundable) 

The Damage Deposit may be returned following inspection of the event/activity once the 

County facility is found to be in a condition similar prior to its use by an individual or 

group.  A memo from the Maintenance Director will be issued to the Treasurer’s office to 

reimburse all or part of the damage deposit, depending on any clean-up or damage issues 

(see Sections V and VI).  

 

A. Fees (as defined in Exhibit A) will only be accepted by the Cibola County 

Treasurer’s Office.  Cash, checks, or money orders will be accepted.  Receipts will be 

issued to the individual renting County facilities or property.   

 

V. CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 

A.  Except as provided in Section III(c) herein, all individual and group events and 

activities that are not sponsored by the County as provided herein will be required to 

provide a Certificate of Insurance in the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000) 

naming Cibola County as “Additional Insured” prior to use of the building or facility.  

Vendors related to groups or individuals using a County building or facility shall provide 

a copy of the Facility Use Permit and Certificate of Insurance to the Public Works 

Director, or his/her designee.  

1. Insurance may be obtained through the County’s carrier, the New Mexico 

Association of Counties, through its Tenant Users Liability Insurance Program 

(TULIP). Except as otherwise provided herein, insurance must be obtained prior 

to the requested use of the County Facility.  See Exhibit C for information 

regarding purchasing TULIP insurance. 
 



2. Insurance may also be obtained through a private insurance company by 

the responsible individual hosting the event/activity.  The insurance requirements 

must be the same as listed in (A) and must be obtained prior to use of the County 

facility. 

 

  

VII.  SECURITY 

 

A.  All groups and individuals using the facility are responsible for the contents and 

security of the building and property. 

 

B.  Opening and closing of a building will be performed by a County employee, or their 

designee, as part of the building usage agreement to ensure condition of the facility and 

its contents before and after and event/activity. 

 

C.  Except as provided in Section III(C) herein, a clean-up and security deposit of not less 

than one hundred dollars ($100) is required of all individuals/groups using a County 

building.  There may also be a fifty dollar ($50) damage and security deposit required for 

the use of the kitchen facilities (if applicable).  A one-time four hundred dollars ($400) 

clean-up and security deposit may be required for events or activities that have previously 

used a County building and have left the building or property in an untidy or dilapidated 

condition. 

 

B.  Except as provided by Section III(C) herein, individuals or groups using the 

facility on a regular basis (i.e. every first Thursday of the month) may only be required a 

single damage deposit for all its events and may have the deposit returned following the 

final date of scheduled use. 
 

C. In buildings where kitchen facilities are available for use, the kitchen must be 

maintained to a commercial standard if the building is currently maintained to a 

commercial standard. Strict adherence to kitchen policies and procedures is required.  

Failure to do so will result in denial of future permit requests. 

VIII.  DAMAGES 

A. The individual responsible for the group and the group as a whole shall be 

responsible for all damage to the County building or property. 
 

B. Groups and individuals allowed to use a County building or property must leave 

the space in an acceptable condition. 
 



C. All damages to the County building or property will be the responsibility of the 

user, and cost of any damages will be deducted from the security deposit.  Any additional 

expenses to repair or clean-up above and beyond the collected security deposit will be 

billed directly to the responsible individual. 
 

D. The group or individual will be notified within thirty-six (36) hours of the damage 

and provided an itemized list of damages and estimated cost of repairs and/or clean-up.  

Payment for damages will be deducted from the clean-up and security deposit.  Any 

additional billed amount above the collected security deposit will be required to be paid 

to the County within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice from the County.  Failure to 

make payment will result in suspension of further use of any County building or property. 

IX. PREPARATION AND CLEAN-UP 

Users of a County building or property are responsible for any changes in room 

arrangements prior to use and all clean-up after.  This must be done within the time frame 

for which the County building or property has been reserved.  Any expense for special 

clean-up and/or restoring room arrangements performed by County staff as a result of 

non-compliance with this provision will be deducted from the clean-up and security 

deposit. 

X. CANCELLATIONS 

A. Any changes/cancellation in a scheduled reservation must be made at least two days 

prior to the requested date.  The changes/cancellation must be made to the 

Maintenance Director in writing. 

 

B.  If cancellation is made two (2) days or more in advance of the event or activity, 

all fees will be reimbursed. 

 

C. Changes to an event or activity which will require additional fees will require 

those fees be collected by the Public Works Department prior to the event or activity.  

Changes that may reduce previously collected fees will be recalculated and any refunds 

will be made at the conclusion of the event or activity. 

D. Notification of cancellation to members of the private group or organization is the sole 

responsibility of the organizer. 

 
X I .  C O N D U C T  
The applicant responsible for the permit is required to observe and insure that County rules and 

regulations are observed and adhered to, and that persons associated with their activity or event 



shall respect all County property, personal property rights of others, and avoid unnecessary 

noise disruption to neighbors. 

 
XII. PROHIBITED CONDUCT  
The following conduct shall be prohibited upon county property. 

 

A. Smoking. Smoking is not permitted within County buildings, in compliance with the New 

Mexico Clean Indoor Air Act, NMSA 1978, § 24-16-1 et seq. (1985) and Cibola County 

Policy.  The ordinance is on file in the Office of the County Manager or Office of the 

County Clerk. 

 
B. Weapons. Use, possession or storage of any weapon on all county property is expressly 

prohibited. This section shall not apply to a law enforcement officer acting in the 

lawful performance of his or her duties, or to personnel of the District Attorney's 

Office. 
 
C. Animals. Animals of any kind are prohibited from entry into County buildings 

except for qualified assistance animals or at the Animal Control Center. Any person 

with a qualified assistance animal shall be liable for any damage done by his or her 

qualified assistance animal. 
 

D. False Alarms. Initiating or causing to be initiated any false report, warning or 

threat of fire, explosion or other emergency is prohibited at county buildings. Misusing 

or damaging fire safety equipment on County property is prohibited. 
 

E. Controlled Substances. The use, possession, or distribution of any controlled 

substance or illegal drug in a County building or on County property is prohibited. 
 
F. Alcoholic Beverages. The use, possession or distribution of alcoholic 

beverages in any County building is prohibited. 
 
G. Fireworks. Use or possession of allowed fireworks per the current Ordinance 

pertaining to the Sale and Use of Fireworks in the unincorporated Areas of Cibola 

County, unless expressly authorized in writing by the County Manager, is prohibited. 
 

XI. LIMITATIONS  
A. Nothing in this policy shall be construed to prevent lawful assembly and peaceful 

and orderly petition for the redress of grievances, including any labor dispute. 

 

B. Nothing in this policy shall limit the County Manager in adopting additional rules 

and regulations as such may be required from time to time or in enforcing laws, 

regulations or policies to insure the protection and security of County buildings or 

facilities. 

 

XIII.  EXHIBITS 



 

Exhibit A – Building Usage Application 

 

Exhibit B – NMAC Tulip 

 

Exhibit C – Release Form  
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this ____ day of _________, 2016 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR THE COUNTY OF CIBOLA 

 

 

_____________________________              __________________________________ 

T. Walter Jaramillo, Chairman   Patrick Simpson, Member 

 

 

________________________________    ____________________________________ 

Robert Armijo, 1st Vice-Chairman                  Lloyd F. Felipe, Member 

 

  

               _____________________________ 

               Jack Moleres, 2nd Vice-Chairman 

 

Attested: 

 

___________________________ 

Elisa Bro, Cibola County Clerk 

 

  



                               Exhibit B 

 

NMAC TULIP (Tenant Users Liability Insurance Program) 
 

 

TULIP Insurance must be purchased through the One Beacon Insurance Group if not 

purchased through a private insurance organization (i.e. homeowner’s insurance).  

Insurance may only be obtained through One Beacon’s website.  Instructions for 

obtaining insurance are as follows: 

 

1. Go to the One Beacon Insurance Group website at 

www.onebeaconentertainment.com 

2. On the main page, under “TULIP – Event Insurance” click “Purchase or Quote”. 

3. You will be taken to the quote page.  Enter Cibola County’s Venue ID Code: 

OB31-023, and follow the instructions as they take you through their on-line 

form. 

4. You will be prompted through a number of screens to provide such information 

as the type of event you are planning, the number of attendees, and the date of 

the event. 

5. Once you complete the necessary information, you will be provided with a quote 

for the TULIP insurance 

6. Continue to following the instructions to pay for and print your documentation 

for insurance.  

7. Provide a copy (either email or hard copy) to the Cibola County Maintenance 

Director for your event. 

A copy of the Insurance must be on file with Cibola County Maintenance Director two (2) 

days prior to the event for non-county sponsored events. 

 

 

 

http://www.onebeaconentertainment.com/


Exhibit C 

 

Building Usage Waiver Form 

 

Please read the following carefully.  If you have any questions, have them answered before signing this 

document.  (Please Print Legibly) 

I,______________________(name), in exchange and consideration for being allowed to utilize the 

authorized County facilities pursuant to the County’s Building Usage Policy, hereby release and waive 

and hold harmless the County of Cibola its elected officials, officers, agents and employees, from and 

against any and all claims, demands or causes of action of any type whatsoever, including property 

damage, personal injury or death arising out of or in any way relating to my use of the County Facility.   

By signing this waiver of liability and release, I acknowledge that I have read and understood this 

document and fully agree to its terms and conditions. 

 

________________________________   ________________________________  

Signature     Date 

 























































































PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

CIBOLA COUNTY

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the County of Cibola,
hereinafter referred to as the  " County"  and Global Correctional Group,  hereinafter
referred to as the " Contractor", and is effective as of the date set forth below upon which

it is executed by the Purchasing Agent and the Board of County Commissioners.

IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES:

1. Scope ofWork.

The Contractor shall perform the work outlined in the Scope of Work attached
hereto as Attachment 1 and incorporated herein by reference.

2. Compensation.

A.       The County shall pay to the Contractor in full payment for services
satisfactorily performed Fifty-Four Thousand Dollars and no cents ($ 54,000.00) semi-

annually, to be invoiced in equal monthly amounts after performance of the services. The
New Mexico gross receipts tax levied on the amounts payable under this Agreement
totaling $ 4,252.50 shall be paid by the County to the Contractor in equal monthly
amounts. The total amount payable to the Contractor under this Agreement, including
gross receipts tax and expenses, shall not exceed $ 58,252.50.   In no event will the

Contractor be paid any amount in excess of the specified total amount payable without
this Agreement being amended in writing.

B.       Payment is subject to availability of funds pursuant to the Appropriations
Paragraph set forth below and to any negotiations between the parties from year to year
pursuant to Paragraph 1, Scope of Work.  All invoices MUST BE received by the County
no later than fifteen ( 15) days after the termination of the Fiscal Year in which the
services were delivered.  Invoices received after such date WILL NOT BE PAID.

C.       Contractor must submit a detailed statement accounting for all services
performed, specified on a minimum of a quarter hour basis, and expenses incurred.  If the

County finds that the services are not acceptable, within thirty days after the date of
receipt of written notice from the Contractor that payment is requested, it shall provide
the Contractor a letter of exception explaining the defect or objection to the services, and
outlining steps the Contractor may take to provide remedial action.  Upon certification by
the County that the services have been received and accepted, payment shall be tendered
to the Contractor within thirty days after the date of acceptance. If payment is made by
mail, the payment shall be deemed tendered on the date it is postmarked.  However, the

County shall not incur late charges, interest, or penalties for failure to make payment
within the time specified herein.

201601296 Page 1of14B:
tFi24NM: 

05721 © 710612016

r

04: 24 PM

IIIIIillllllllilllllllllllillllllllllllllllllilllllillllllllllllllilllllillllllllllll



D.       The payment of taxes due for any money received under this Agreement
shall be the Contractor's sole responsibility and shall be reported under the Contractor' s
Federal and State tax identification number( s).

3.       Term.

This Agreement is for Six ( 6) months from the date of approval by the Cibola
County Board of County Commissioners. This Contract will not automatically renew on
a semi- annual basis, but must be presented to and approved by the Cibola County
Commission for the six  (6)  additional months'  term unless terminated pursuant to

paragraph 4 ( Termination), or paragraph 5 ( Appropriations).  In accordance with Section

13- 1- 150 NMSA 1978, no term for a professional services contract, including extensions
and renewals, shall exceed four years, except as set forth in Section 13- 1- 150 NMSA
1978.

4.       Termination.

A.       Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by either of the parties
hereto upon written notice delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the
intended date of termination.   Except as otherwise allowed or provided under this

Agreement,  the County' s sole liability upon such termination shall be to pay for
acceptable work performed prior to the Contractor' s receipt of the notice of termination,

if the County is the terminating party, or the Contractor' s sending of the notice of
termination, if the Contractor is the terminating party; provided, however, that a notice of
termination shall not nullify or otherwise affect either party' s liability for pre- termination
defaults under or breaches of this Agreement.  The Contractor shall submit an invoice for
such work within thirty ( 30) days of receiving or sending the notice of termination.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be terminated immediately upon
written notice to the Contractor if the Contractor becomes unable to perform the services
contracted for, as determined by the County or if, during the term of this Agreement, the
Contractor or any of its officers, employees or agents is indicted for fraud, embezzlement
or other crime due to misuse of government funds or due to the Appropriations paragraph
herein.  THIS PROVISION IS NOT EXCLUSIVE AND DOES NOT WAIVE THE
COUNTY' S OTHER LEGAL RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CAUSED BY THE

CONTRACTOR'S DEFAULT/BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT.

B Termination Management.  Immediately upon receipt by either the County
or the Contractor of notice of termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall: 1) not
incur any further obligations for salaries, services or any other expenditure of funds under
this Agreement without written approval of the County; 2) comply with all directives
issued by the County in the notice of termination as to the performance of work under
this Agreement;  and 3) take such action as the County shall direct for the protection,
preservation,  retention or transfer of all property titled to the County and records
generated under this Agreement. Any non-expendable personal property or equipment
provided to or purchased by the Contractor with contract funds shall become property of
the County upon termination and shall be submitted to the County as soon as practicable.

5.       Appropriations.

201601296 Page 2of14B: 024 P 05722 07, 06/ 2016 04. 24 PM
Elise Bro, Cfloola County, NM Clerk and Recorder
1 1111111 III 111111 1111 11111 1111 1111111 X 11111 1111 111111111 11111 1111111 111 1111 1111



The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and

authorization being made by the Board of County Commissioners for the performance of
this Agreement.  If sufficient appropriations and authorization are not made by the Board
of County Commissioners, this Agreement shall terminate immediately upon written
notice being given by the County to the Contractor. The County's decision as to whether
sufficient appropriations are available shall be accepted by the Contractor and shall be
final. If the County proposes an amendment to the Agreement to unilaterally reduce
funding, the Contractor shall have the option to terminate the Agreement or to agree to
the reduced funding, within thirty( 30) days of receipt of the proposed amendment.

6.       Status of Contractor.

The Contractor and its agents and employees are independent contractors

performing professional services for the County and are not employees of the County of
Cibola. The Contractor and its agents and employees shall not accrue leave, retirement,
insurance, bonding, use of county vehicles, or any other benefits afforded to employees
of the County of Cibola as a result of this Agreement. The Contractor acknowledges that
all sums received hereunder are reportable by the Contractor for tax purposes, including
without limitation, self-employment and business income tax.  The Contractor agrees not
to purport to bind the County of Cibola unless the Contractor has express written
authority to do so, and then only within the strict limits of that authority.

7.       Assignment.

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement or
assign any claims for money due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written approval of the County.

8.       Subcontracting.

The Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the services to be performed
under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the County.  No such
subcontract shall relieve the primary Contractor from its obligations and liabilities under
this Agreement, nor shall any subcontract obligate direct payment from the County. In all
cases, the contractor is solely responsible for fulfillment of this Agreement.

9.       Release.

Final payment of the amounts due under this Agreement shall operate as a release

of the procuring agency of the County, its officers and employees, and the County of
Cibola from all liabilities, claims and obligations whatsoever arising from or under this
Agreement.

10.      Confidentiality.

Any confidential information provided to or developed by the Contractor in the
performance of this Agreement shall be kept confidential and shall not be made available
to any individual or organization by the Contractor without the prior written approval of
the County.

age 3° f 14B. 024 P: 05723 07/ 06/ 2016 04: 24 PM
Elisa Br°    

Recorder

201601296201601296 P

I IItt III IIIIII



11.     Product of Service— Copyright.

All materials developed or acquired by the Contractor under this Agreement shall
become the property of the County of Cibola and shall be delivered to the County no later
than the termination date of this Agreement. Nothing developed or produced, in whole or
in part, by the Contractor under this Agreement shall be the subject of an application for
copyright or other claim of ownership by or on behalf of the Contractor.

12.      Conflict of Interest; Governmental Conduct Act.

A.      The Contractor represents and warrants that it presently has no interest
and, during the term of this Agreement, shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect,
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance or services required
under the Agreement.

B.       The Contractor further represents and warrants that it has complied with,

and, during the term of this Agreement, will continue to comply with, and that this
Agreement complies with all applicable provisions of the Governmental Conduct Act,
Chapter 10, Article 16 NMSA 1978.  Without in anyway limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the Contractor specifically represents and warrants that:

1)       in accordance with Section 10- 16-4.3 NMSA 1978, the Contractor
does not employ,  has not employed,  and will not employ during the term of this
Agreement any County employee while such employee was or is employed by the
County and participating directly or indirectly in the County' s contracting process;   

r1

2)       this Agreement complies with Section 10- 16- 7( B) NMSA 1978
because ( i) the Contractor is not a public officer or employee of the County; ( ii) the

Contractor is not a member of the family of a public officer or employee of the County;
iii) the Contractor is not a business in which a public officer or employee or the family

of a public officer or employee has a substantial interest; or ( iv) if the Contractor is a
public officer or employee of the County, a member of the family of a public officer or
employee of the County, or a business in which a public officer or employee of the
County or the family of a public officer or employee of the County has a substantial
interest, public notice was given as required by Section 10- 16- 7( B) NMSA 1978 and this
Agreement was awarded pursuant to a competitive process;

3)       in accordance with Section 10- 16- 8( C)  NMSA 1978,  ( i)  the

Contractor is not, and has not been represented by, a person who has been a public officer
or employee of the County within the preceding year and whose official act directly
resulted in this Agreement and( ii) the Contractor is not, and has not been assisted in any
way regarding this transaction by, a former public officer or employee of the County
whose official act, while in County employment, directly resulted in the County's making
this Agreement;

4)       in accordance with Section 10- 16- 13 NMSA 1978, the Contractor
has not directly participated in the preparation of specifications,  qualifications or

evaluation criteria for this Agreement or any procurement related to this Agreement; and
5)       in accordance with Section 10- 16- 3 and Section 10- 16- 13. 3 NMSA

1978, the Contractor has not contributed, and during the term of this Agreement shall not
contribute, anything of value to a public officer or employee of the County.

201601296

Elise Brro, PCibolafCouunt©
24

NM Clerk4a©d / Reco©der©

4. 24 PM

1111111 III 111111 Iitl 11111111111 1111111111 111111111 VIII 11111 X11111111111 III VIII IIll



C.       Contractor' s representations and warranties in Paragraphs A and B of this

Article 12 are material representations of fact upon which the County relied when this
Agreement was entered into by the parties.  Contractor shall provide immediate written

notice to the County if, at any time during the term of this Agreement, Contractor learns
that Contractor' s representations and warranties in Paragraphs A and B of this Article 12

were erroneous on the effective date of this Agreement or have become erroneous by
reason of new or changed circumstances.  If it is later determined that Contractor' s
representations and warranties in Paragraphs A and B of this Article 12 were erroneous

on the effective date of this Agreement or have become erroneous by reason of new or
changed circumstances,  in addition to other remedies available to the County and
notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, the County may immediately
terminate the Agreement.

D.      All terms defined in the Governmental Conduct Act have the same
meaning in this Article 12( B).

13.     Amendment.

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed or amended except by instrument in
writing executed by the parties hereto and all other required signatories.

14.     Merger.

This Agreement incorporates all the Agreements, covenants and understandings
between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such covenants,
Agreements and understandings have been merged into this written Agreement. No prior
Agreement or understanding, oral or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid
or enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement.

15.     Penalties for violation of law.
The Procurement Code,  Sections 13- 1- 28 through 13- 1- 199,  NMSA 1978,

imposes civil and criminal penalties for its violation.   In addition, the New Mexico
criminal statutes impose felony penalties for illegal bribes, gratuities and kickbacks.

16.     Equal Opportunity Compliance.

The Contractor agrees to abide by all federal, state and county laws and rules and
regulations, pertaining to equal employment opportunity.  In accordance with all such
laws, the Contractor assures that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of
race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical or mental handicap, or
serious medical condition, spousal affiliation, sexual orientation or gender identity, be
excluded from employment with or participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity performed under this
Agreement.   If Contractor is found not to be in compliance with these requirements
during the life of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to take appropriate steps to correct
these deficiencies.

17.     Applicable Law.

201601296 Page 5of14B: 024 P: 05725 07/ 06/ 2016 04: 24 PM
Elise Bro, Cibola County, NM Clerk and Recorder

11111111III111111101111111111111111111111111111I1111111111IIIII1111111III10lii



In any action, suit or legal dispute arising from this Agreement, the Contractor
agrees that the laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern and that venue will lie in the

Thirteenth Judicial District Court in Cibola County. By execution of this Agreement,
Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of New

Mexico over any and all lawsuits arising under or out of any term of this Agreement.

18.     Workers Compensation.

The Contractor agrees to comply with state laws and rules applicable to workers
compensation benefits for its employees. If the Contractor fails to comply with the
Workers Compensation Act and applicable rules when required to do so, this Agreement

may be terminated by the County.

19.     Records and Financial Audit.

The Contractor shall maintain detailed time and expenditure records that indicate
the date; time, nature and cost of services rendered during the Agreement' s term and
effect and retain them for a period of three ( 3) years from the date of final payment under
this Agreement.    The records shall be subject to inspection by the County,  the

Department of Finance and Administration and the State Auditor. The County shall have
the right to audit billings both before and after payment.  Payment under this Agreement
shall not foreclose the right of the County to recover excessive or illegal payments

20.     Disclaimer and Hold Harmless.

Cibola County shall not be liable to the Contractor, or the Contractor' s successors,
heirs, administrators, or assigns, for any loss, damage, or injury, whether to Contractor' s
person or property, occurring in connection with Contractor's performance of Contractor's
duties according to this Agreement.  Contractor shall hold Cibola County harmless from
all loss, damage, and injury, including court costs and attorney fees, incurred by Cibola
County in connection with the performance by Contractor of Contractor's duties
according to this Agreement.

21.     Indemnification.

The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County of Cibola
from all actions, proceeding, claims, demands, costs, damages, attorneys' fees and all
other liabilities and expenses of any kind from any source which may arise out of the
performance of this Agreement, caused by the negligent act or failure to act of the
Contractor, its officers, employees, servants, subcontractors or agents, or if caused by the
actions of any client of the Contractor resulting in injury or damage to persons or
property during the time when the Contractor or any officer, agent, employee, servant or
subcontractor thereof has or is performing services pursuant to this Agreement.  In the

event that any action,  suit or proceeding related to the services performed by the
Contractor or any officer,  agent,  employee,  servant or subcontractor under this

Agreement is brought against the Contractor, the Contractor shall, as soon as practicable

but no later than two ( 2) days after it receives notice thereof, notify the legal counsel of
the County of Cibola and the New Mexico Association of Counties by certified mail.

22.     Invalid Term or Condition.

EOl60l29o, P8ibo6af14B 024NM

C057
6a 07/ 06/ 2016

6 2 6r©
4 24 PM

IIIIII III IIIIII IIII IIIIII VIII IIII IIIIIII IIIIII IIII IIII VI1111111111111111111111111



If any term or condition of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable,
the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected and shall be valid and enforceable.

23.     Enforcement of Agreement.

A party's failure to require strict performance of any provision of this Agreement
shall not waive or diminish that party's right thereafter to demand strict compliance with
that or any other provision.   No waiver by a party of any of its rights under this
Agreement shall be effective unless express and in writing, and no effective waiver by a
party of any of its rights shall be effective to waive any other rights.

24.     Authority.
If Contractor is other than a natural person,  the individual( s)  signing this

Agreement on behalf of Contractor represents and warrants that he or she has the power
and authority to bind Contractor, and that no further action, resolution, or approval from
Contractor is necessary to enter into a binding contract.

25.     Lobbying.

No federal appropriated funds can be paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
CONTRACTOR, or any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any County, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, or the making of any Federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid
or will be paid to any person influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any County, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection of this federal contract, grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall complete and submit Standard Form
LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

26.     Approval of Contractor Personnel.

Personnel proposed in the Contractor's written proposal to the County are
considered material to any work performed under this Agreement.  No changes of

personnel will be made by the Contractor without prior written consent of the procuring
agency of the County.  Replacement of any Contractor personnel, if approved, shall be
with personnel of equal ability, experience and qualifications.  The Contractor will be

responsible for any expenses incurred in familiarizing the replacement personnel to
insure their being productive to the project immediately upon receiving assignments.
Approval of replacement personnel shall not be unreasonably withheld. The procuring
agency of the County shall retain the right to request the removal of any of the
Contractor's personnel at any time.

27.      Survival.

The agreement paragraphs titled" Patent, Copyright, Trademark, and Trade Secret
Indemnification" and " Indemnification" shall survive the expiration of this agreement.

201601296 Page 7of146: 024 P 05727 07/ 06/ 2016 04: 24 PM
Elise Bro, Cibola County, NM Clerk and Recorder

11111111 111 1111011111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 111



Software licenses, leases, maintenance and any other unexpired agreements that were
entered into under the terms and conditions of this agreement shall survive this agreement

28.     Succession.

This agreement shall extend to and be binding upon the successors and assigns of
the parties.

29.     Force Majeure.

A party shall be excused from performance under this agreement for any period
that the party is prevented from performing as a result of an act of God, strike, war, civil
disturbance, epidemic, or court order, provided that the party has prudently and promptly
acted to take any and all steps that are within the party's control to ensure performance.
Subject to this provision, such non-performance shall not be deemed a default or a
ground for termination.

30.     Mediation.

In the event a dispute arises as to the rights and obligations among the parties
hereto, the parties agree to attempt to resolve the dispute through mediation as a
condition precedent to seeking legal and equitable remedies.  The parties agree to evenly

split the costs of any such mediation services.  The parties shall mutually agree upon the
choice of mediator.   In the event the parties have not agreed upon a mediator within

twenty (20) days of written notice to the other regarding the dispute, then a list of seven
potential mediators will be obtained from the New Mexico Association of Counties and
the parties shall utilize a striking process until a mediator is agreed upon.

31.     Notice to Proceed.

It is expressly understood that this Agreement is not binding upon the County
until it is executed by the Board of County Commissioners after voting on the contract at
a public meeting or unless it is executed by the Cibola County Manager, pursuant to the
Manager's delegated authority.  Further,  the Contractor is not to proceed with its
obligations under the Agreement until the Contractor has received a fully signed copy of
the Agreement.

32.     Attorney' s Fees.

In the event this Agreement results in dispute, mediation, litigation, or settlement
between the parties to this Agreement, the prevailing party of such action shall NOT be
entitled to an award of attorneys' fees and court costs.

33.     Cooperation.

All parties hereto will fully cooperate with the other and their respective counsel,
accountant, and agents in connection with any steps required to be taken under this
Agreement.

34.     Incorporation and Order of Precedence.

201601296 Page 8of146: 024 P: 05728 07/ 06/ 2016 04: 24 PM
Elise Bro, Cibola County, NM Clerk and Recorder

111111111111 1111111111111111111111111111111111011 111111101111111IIIIIII IllII



Request for Proposals No.  FY2016- 05- 02 and the contractor's proposal are

incorporated by reference into this agreement and are made a part of this agreement. In
the event of any conflict among these documents, the following order of precedence shall
apply:

1.       Any contract amendment( s), in reverse chronological order; then
2.       this contract itself; then

3.       the Request for Proposals; then

4.       the Contractors Best and Final Offer(s), in reverse chronological order;

then

5.       the contractor' s proposal; then

6.       the contractor's standard agreement terms and conditions ( which may or
may not

have been submitted as part of the contractor's proposal).

35.     Patent, Copyright, Trademark and Trade Secret Indemnification.

A.      The contractor shall defend, at its own expense, the County of Cibola
against any claim that any product or service provided under this agreement infringes any
patent, copyright or trademark in the United States or Puerto Rico, and shall pay all costs,
damages and attorneys' fees that a court finally awards as a result of any such claim.  In

addition, if any third party obtains a judgment against the County of Cibola based upon
the contractor's trade secret infringement relating to any product or service provided
under this agreement, the contractor agrees to reimburse the County of Cibola for all
costs, attorneys' fees and the amount of the judgment.  To qualify for such defense and/or
payment, the County ofCibola shall:

i. gives the contractor prompt written notice of any claim;

ii.       allow the contractor to control the defense or settlement of the claim; and

iii.      cooperate with the contractor in a reasonable way to facilitate the defense
or settlement of the claim.

B.       If any product or service becomes, or in the contractor's opinion is likely
to become the subject of a claim of infringement, the contractor shall at its option and
expense:

i. provide a procuring agency of the County the right to continue using the
product or service;

ii.       replace or modify the product or service so that it becomes non- infringing;
or

iii.      accept the return of the product or service and refund an amount equal to

the depreciated value of the returned product or service, less the unpaid portion of the

201601296 Page 9o114B: ° 244: ©
5729 07/© 612016 04: 24 PM

Illlllllllllllllll llllllllillllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllil
r



purchase price and any other amounts which are due to the contractor.  The contractor's

obligation will be void as to any product or service modified by the procuring agency of
the County to the extent such modification is the cause of the claim.

36.      Professional Liability Insurance. 1
Contractor agrees to maintain in full force throughout the duration of the

Agreement a lawyers professional liability insurance policy with a minimum coverage of
1, 000,000.00 per occurrence/$ 2, 000,000.00 aggregate.

37.      Notices.

Any notice required to be given to either party by this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be delivered in person, by courier service or by U.S. mail, either first
class or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, as follows:

To the County: Tony Boyd, County Manager // 515 West High Street // Grants, NM

87020

To the Contractor:  Global Corrections Group  // One Sun Avenue NE Suite #  650

Albuquerque, NM 87109

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date

of signature by the Board of County Commissioners below.

By: Date:‘i/2' /  a/,‘,

Contf" or

Printed Name: Danieray Johnson, Vice President

Address: One Sun Avenue NE Suite# 650, Albuquerque, NM 87109

By:     P      r      Date:   7        fCY
Ci ola y Manager

Printed Nam:   ony Boyd

Address: 515 West High Street

Grants, NM 87020

By jet-w2C-/ L Elil9( (/     Date:    (°  on—§

Cibola County Purchasing Agent

201601296 Page lOof146: 024 P. 05730 07/ 06/ 2016 04: 24 PM
Elisa Bro, Cibola County, NM Clerk and Recorder

11111111 10 10111 111111 111111 11111 III 1111111 1111 X1110E111110 1111111 III IIII III



Printed Name: Frances Medina

Address: 515 West High Street

Grants, NM 87020

201601296 Page 11of14B: 024 P: 05731 07/ 06/ 2016 04: 24 PM
Elisa Bro, Cibola County, NM Clerk and Recorder

1 1111111 I I 1 111111 11111 1111 111111 11111 1111 1111111 111111 1111 1111 11111 11111 111111111111 1111



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

APPROVED, ADOPTED AND PASSED on this  %";1 day of  ,\ , ! ,
2016.

Robert Armijo e alterJana-   I

Commissioner, District I Commissio- rr, District II

Ja Moleres Pat Simpson

Commissioner, District III Commissioner, District IV

CO,D'''
494.1Y Cieiet:**t

i:      
ABSENT

Lloyd FelipeSEAL  •
V;      Commissioner, District V

NEB```%%.

Attest:

t

z Lisa B
Cibola County Clerk

Page
04: 24 PM

1 111111 IIl illlll 11111111111111 ill illl 1111 i lliii IIll lit 1111111111111111 lii liii liii



Attachment 1

Scope of Work

Required activities include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:

I.  Scope of Services

The responsibility ofthe Contractor is to use its best efforts to
render professional consulting services to Cibola County to impart
expertise to assist in maintaining successful compliance, based
upon Contractor' s experience with the American Correctional

Association and its extensive knowledge of the Federal

Performance Based Detention Standards.

Included in the support services, the Contractor shall assist in

providing Phase Ill Aftercare Services which consist ofthe
following:

A)   Provide County Commission with monthly
SCORECARD© evaluation on progress of assessment

reviews and compliance procedures.

B)   Consultation to assist the County to maintain effective
facility oversight.

C)   Provide onsite weekly/bi- weekly site visits as mutually agreed upon and
deemed appropriate.

D)   Attend additional meetings, training, as mutually agreed
and deemed appropriate.

E)    Assist with training and development of managers and Correctional staff.

F)    Make recommendations regarding staff assessment,  hires and training
needs.

G)   Assess and recommend compliance action( s) according
to the Prison Rape Elimination Act( P.R. F. A.) pursuant to the

Department of Justice ( D.O.J.) [ C. F. R. National Standards to

Prevent,  Detect and Respond to Prison Rape ( June, 2012)

referred to as the Act].

11)   Provide managerial training and mentoring to facility officials.   
01

I)      Consulting services when working with Federal and other agencies.     

J)      Oversight assistance and monitoring - perpetual- audit compliance.

NM Clerk and Recorder201601296 Page 13of14B: 024 P: 05733 07106!
rder

04: 24 PM

2010 296 Cibola County,
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIVIIIVIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII



K)   Oversight assistance and monitoring of facility procedural compliance.

GCG will provide:

In depth knowledge with Adult Detention Standards and

provide documents that comply with the Adult Detention
Standards

Provide weekly, bi- weekly, (or

according to an agreed schedule) on-

going inspections and meet with
leadership staff

Assist with training and development

Assist with development and tracking of scorecard
process

Provide an annual inspection and report to the County
Manager( to be provided if contract is extended in

May/June 2017.

Provide monthly scorecard reports of the Detention Center progress to the
County Manager

Assist with Management interviews

Provide assistance as outlined in this proposal and

specifically as described under Section 1. Tab d,
Response to Specifications

201601296 Page 14of14B: 024 P 05734 07/ 06/ 2016 04 24 PM
Elisa Bro, Cibola County, NM Clerk and Recorder

1111III I 1 Mil FE HEIMIIII 1111111 Hit IIIII 1111111 III III III



Cibola County
Contract Summary

Contract Information

Company
Future Foundatons

Name:

Contact Person:    Sherri Kachirsky Phone: 505 285- 3542 ext 102

Address: 551 Washington Ave

Grants, NM 87020
Email:  II( I liar( ;() c III, r tr >:i.

Type of Contract

Administrative Services Z  Professional Service

Other( describe):

Department
Commission

Responsible:

Purpose:

Provide Summer Youth Programs, After School Recreation, Baby Class, Summer
Youth Employment Training, Building Maintenance Care

Purchase Order
Click here to enter text.

Number:

Year Annualized    $
63,000.00

Expenditure: 
17, 000 will be available for building maintenance FFFC provide the first$ 1000

toward building repair.

Automatic Renewal

Yes the contract will Renew X No Contract Requires

Automatically Approval

Term of 1 year

Contract:
Start Date; 6/ 22/ 2016 412 0,  7/ 21/ 2017

Insurance on

File: 
Yes Insurance Renewal

Z No Date:

Cancellation
Yes Required Notice:

Option:    
No 30 days

Notes slick here to

Amendments/       
Date: Click here to enter a date.

Addendums
Reason: Click here to enter text.



GOVNT Y       /
F' ii

SEAL   •
CIBOLA COUNTY

CONTRACT# 2016-04- 01
NEV/ •   `

ann„ r

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the County of Cibola, hereinafter
referred to as the " County" and Future Foundations, Family Center ( SOS Entity # 1724707),
hereinafter referred to as the  " Contractor";  procured pursuant to RFP 2016-04- 01,  the

Contractor' s response thereto, and any negotiations conducted pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section
13- 1- 115 and county purchasing policy; and is effective as of the date set forth below upon
which it is executed by the Purchasing Agent and the Board of County Commissioners.

IT IS AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES:

1.       Scope of Work.

The Contractor shall perform the work outlined in the Scope of Work attached hereto as

Attachment 1 and incorporated herein by reference.

2.       Compensation.

A.       The compensation to be provided pursuant to this solicitation will be $ 63, 000.00

for Administrative Overhead and Oversite on Programs held at Center. The sum of

17,000 will be available for building maintenance ( janitorial plus materials) and utilities
for the entire facility. The Contractor will provide the first$ 1000 toward any building
repair; the County providing the remainder of cost of repair.

B.       Contractor must submit a monthly statement accounting for all services
performed.

C.       The payment of taxes due for any money received under this Agreement shall be
the Contractor's sole responsibility and shall be reported under the Contractor's Federal and State
tax identification number( s).

3.       Term.

This Agreement is for one ( 1) year from the date of approval by the Cibola County Board of
County Commissioners. This Contract will automatically renew on an annual basis, for up to
three ( 3) additional one ( 1) year terms unless terminated pursuant to paragraph 4 ( Termination),

or paragraph 5 ( Appropriations).

4.       Termination.

A.       Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by either of the parties hereto
upon written notice delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the intended date
of termination.   A notice of termination shall not nullify or otherwise affect either party' s
liability for pre-termination defaults under or breaches of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the

024 P. 0566© 071© 5cor/
2016

a

01 26 PM

201601266 Page 10f 1B1
Elisa Bros

Cibolall' lllllllll'
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII' ll

I IIIIIII III IIIIII IIII IIIIIIVIII



foregoing, this Agreement may be terminated immediately upon written notice to the Contractor
if the Contractor becomes unable to perform the services contracted for, as determined by the
County or if, during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor or any of its officers, employees
or agents is indicted for fraud, embezzlement or other crime due to misuse of government funds

or due to the Appropriations paragraph herein. THIS PROVISION IS NOT EXCLUSIVE AND

DOES NOT WAIVE THE COUNTY' S OTHER LEGAL RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CAUSED

BY THE CONTRACTOR'S DEFAULT/BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT.

B Termination Management. Immediately upon receipt by either the County or the
Contractor of notice of termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall: 1) comply with all
directives issued by the County in the notice of termination as to the performance of work under
this Agreement;  and 2)  take such action as the County shall direct for the protection,
preservation, retention or transfer of all property titled to the County and records generated under
this Agreement. Any non-expendable personal property or equipment provided to or purchased
by the Contractor with contract funds shall become property of the County upon termination and
shall be submitted to the County as soon as practicable.

5.       Appropriations.

The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and

authorization being made by the Board of County Commissioners for the performance of this
Agreement.  If sufficient appropriations and authorization are not made by the Board of County
Commissioners, this Agreement shall terminate immediately upon written notice being given by
the County to the Contractor. The County' s decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are
available shall be accepted by the Contractor and shall be final. If the County proposes an
amendment to the Agreement to unilaterally reduce funding, the Contractor shall have the option
to terminate the Agreement or to agree to the reduced funding, within thirty (30) days of receipt
of the proposed amendment.

6.       Status of Contractor.

The Contractor and its agents and employees are independent contractors performing
professional services for the County and are not employees of the County of Cibola. The
Contractor and its agents and employees shall not accrue leave, retirement, insurance, bonding,
use of county vehicles, or any other benefits afforded to employees of the County of Cibola as a
result of this Agreement.   The Contractor acknowledges that all sums received hereunder are

reportable by the Contractor for tax purposes, including without limitation, self-employment and
business income tax.  The Contractor agrees not to purport to bind the County of Cibola unless
the Contractor has express written authority to do so, and then only within the strict limits of that
authority.

7.       Assignment.

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement or assign any
claims for money due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written approval
of the County.

8.       Subcontracting. 201601285 Page 2o11113 024 P: 05661 07/ 05/ 2016 01 26 PM
Elisa Bro, Cibola County, NM Clerk and Recorder
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIVIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIVIIIVIIIIIIIIIIIIIVIIIIIIIIIII



The Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the services to be performed under
this Agreement without the prior written approval of the County. No such subcontract shall
relieve the primary Contractor from its obligations and liabilities under this Agreement, nor shall
any subcontract obligate direct payment from the County. In all cases, the contractor is solely
responsible for fulfillment of this Agreement.

9.       Release.

Final payment of the amounts due under this Agreement shall operate as a release of the

procuring agency of the County, its officers and employees, and the County of Cibola from all
liabilities, claims and obligations whatsoever arising from or under this Agreement.

10.      Confidentiality.

Any confidential information provided to or developed by the Contractor in the
performance of this Agreement shall be kept confidential and shall not be made available to any
individual or organization by the Contractor without the prior written approval of the County.

11.      Product of Service-- Copyright.

All materials developed or acquired by the Contractor under this Agreement shall become
the property of the County of Cibola and shall be delivered to the County no later than the
termination date of this Agreement.  Nothing developed or produced, in whole or in part, by the
Contractor under this Agreement shall be the subject of an application for copyright or other

claim of ownership by or on behalf of the Contractor.

12.      Conflict of Interest; Governmental Conduct Act.

A.       The Contractor represents and warrants that it presently has no interest and,
during the term of this Agreement, shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would
conflict in any manner or degree with the performance or services required under the Agreement.

B.       The Contractor further represents and warrants that it has complied with, and,

during the term of this Agreement, will continue to comply with, and that this Agreement
complies with all applicable provisions of the Governmental Conduct Act, Chapter 10, Article 16

NMSA 1978.   Without in anyway limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Contractor
specifically represents and warrants that:

1)       in accordance with Section 10- 16- 4. 3 NMSA 1978, the Contractor does

not employ, has not employed, and will not employ during the term of this Agreement any
County employee while such employee was or is employed by the County and participating
directly or indirectly in the County' s contracting process;

2)       this Agreement complies with Section 10- 16- 7( B) NMSA 1978 because

i) the Contractor is not a public officer or employee of the County; ( ii) the Contractor is not a

member of the family of a public officer or employee of the County; ( iii) the Contractor is not a

business in which a public officer or employee or the family of a public officer or employee has
a substantial interest; or ( iv) if the Contractor is a public officer or employee of the County, a
member of the family of a public officer or employee of the County, or a business in which a
public officer or employee of the County or the family of a public officer or employee of the

201601285
lafCouuntp24NM CleGrk2a©d/  Reco©der©

1. 26 PM

1111111 III 111111 IIIIII IIIII 01111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111



County has a substantial interest, public notice was given as required by Section 10- 16- 7( B)
NMSA 1978 and this Agreement was awarded pursuant to a competitive process;

3)       in accordance with Section 10- 16- 8( C) NMSA 1978, ( i) the Contractor is

not, and has not been represented by, a person who has been a public officer or employee of the
County within the preceding year and whose official act directly resulted in this Agreement and
ii) the Contractor is not, and has not been assisted in any way regarding this transaction by, a

former public officer or employee of the County whose official act,  while in County
employment, directly resulted in the County's making this Agreement;

4)       in accordance with Section 10- 16- 13 NMSA 1978, the Contractor has not

directly participated in the preparation of specifications, qualifications or evaluation criteria for
this Agreement or any procurement related to this Agreement; and

5)       in accordance with Section 10- 16- 3 and Section 10- 16- 13. 3 NMSA 1978,

the Contractor has not contributed, and during the term of this Agreement shall not contribute,
anything of value to a public officer or employee of the County.

C.       Contractor' s representations and warranties in Paragraphs A and B of this Article

12 are material representations of fact upon which the County relied when this Agreement was
entered into by the parties.  Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the County if, at
any time during the term of this Agreement, Contractor learns that Contractor' s representations
and warranties in Paragraphs A and B of this Article 12 were erroneous on the effective date of

this Agreement or have become erroneous by reason of new or changed circumstances. If it is
later determined that Contractor' s representations and warranties in Paragraphs A and B of this

Article 12 were erroneous on the effective date of this Agreement or have become erroneous by
reason of new or changed circumstances, in addition to other remedies available to the County
and notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, the County may immediately
terminate the Agreement.

D.       All terms defined in the Governmental Conduct Act have the same meaning in
this Article 12( B).

13.      Amendment.

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed or amended except by instrument in writing
executed by the parties hereto and all other required signatories.

14.      Merger.

This Agreement incorporates all the Agreements, covenants and understandings between

the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such covenants, Agreements and
understandings have been merged into this written Agreement.    No prior Agreement or

understanding, oral or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or enforceable unless
embodied in this Agreement.

15.      Penalties for violation of law.

The Procurement Code, Sections 13- 1- 28 through 13- 1- 199, NMSA 1978, imposes civil

and criminal penalties for its violation.  In addition, the New Mexico criminal statutes impose

felony penalties for illegal bribes, gratuities and kickbacks.

2 01601285 Page 401110: 024 P: 05663 07/ 05/ 2016 © 1: 26 PM
Elise Bro, Cibola County, NM Clerk and Recorder

11111111 I I 1 11110 1111 1111111111 1111111111101111110 1111111111111111111111111



r

16.      Equal Opportunity Compliance.
The Contractor agrees to abide by all federal,  state and county laws and rules and

regulations, pertaining to equal employment opportunity.  In accordance with all such laws, the

Contractor assures that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, religion,

color,  national origin,  ancestry,  sex,  age, physical or mental handicap,  or serious medical

condition,  spousal affiliation,  sexual orientation or gender identity,  be excluded from

employment with or participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to

discrimination under any program or activity performed under this Agreement.  If Contractor is

found not to be in compliance with these requirements during the life of this Agreement,
Contractor agrees to take appropriate steps to correct these deficiencies.

17.      Applicable Law.

In any action, suit or legal dispute arising from this Agreement, the Contractor agrees that
the laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern and that venue will lie in the Thirteenth

Judicial District Court in Cibola County.  By execution of this Agreement,  Contractor

acknowledges and agrees to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of New Mexico over any
and all lawsuits arising under or out of any term of this Agreement.

18.      Workers Compensation.

The Contractor agrees to comply with state laws and rules applicable to workers
compensation benefits for its employees. If the Contractor fails to comply with the Workers
Compensation Act and applicable rules when required to do so,  this Agreement may be
terminated by the County.

19.      Records and Financial Audit.

The Contractor shall maintain detailed time and expenditure records that indicate the

date; time, nature and cost of services rendered during the Agreement' s term and effect and
retain them for a period of three ( 3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement.

The records shall be subject to inspection by the County, the Department of Finance and
Administration and the State Auditor.   The County shall have the right to audit billings both
before and after payment.  Payment under this Agreement shall not foreclose the right of the

County to recover excessive or illegal payments

20.      Disclaimer and Hold Harmless.

Cibola County shall not be liable to the Contractor, or the Contractor' s successors, heirs,
administrators, or assigns, for any loss, damage, or injury, whether to Contractor's person or
property, occurring in connection with Contractor's performance of Contractor's duties according
to this Agreement.  Contractor shall hold the Cibola County harmless from all loss, damage, and
injury, including court costs and attorney fees, incurred by Cibola County in connection with the
performance by Contractor of Contractor' s duties according to this Agreement.

21.      Indemnification.

The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County of Cibola from all
actions, proceeding, claims, demands, costs, damages, attorneys' fees and all other liabilities and
expenses of any kind from any source which may arise out of the performance of this

201601285 Page 5of11171: 024 P 05664 07/ 05/ 2016 01: 26 PM
Elise Bro, Cibola County, NM Clerk and Recorder

HMI



Agreement,  caused by the negligent act or failure to act of the Contractor,  its officers,

employees, servants, subcontractors or agents, or if caused by the actions of any client of the
Contractor resulting in injury or damage to persons or property during the time when the
Contractor or any officer, agent, employee, servant or subcontractor thereof has or is performing
services pursuant to this Agreement.  In the event that any action, suit or proceeding related to
the services performed by the Contractor or any officer,  agent,  employee,  servant or

subcontractor under this Agreement is brought against the Contractor, the Contractor shall, as

soon as practicable but no later than two (2) days after it receives notice thereof, notify the legal
counsel of the County of Cibola and the New Mexico Association of Counties by certified mail.

22.      Invalid Term or Condition.

If any term or condition of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected and shall be valid and enforceable.

23.      Enforcement of Agreement.

A party's failure to require strict performance of any provision of this Agreement shall
not waive or diminish that party' s right thereafter to demand strict compliance with that or any
other provision. No waiver by a party of any of its rights under this Agreement shall be effective
unless express and in writing, and no effective waiver by a party of any of its rights shall be
effective to waive any other rights.

24.      Authority.

If Contractor is other than a natural person, the individual( s) signing this Agreement on
behalf of Contractor represents and warrants that he or she has the power and authority to bind
Contractor, and that no further action, resolution, or approval from Contractor is necessary to
enter into a binding contract.

25.      Lobbying.

No federal appropriated funds can be paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
CONTRACTOR, or any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any County, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, or the making of
any Federal grant,  the making of any federal loan,  the entering into of any cooperative
agreement, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.  If any
funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any County, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in

connection of this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the CONTRACTOR

shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, " Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in

accordance with its instructions.

26.      Approval of Contractor Personnel.

Personnel proposed in the Contractor's written proposal to the County are considered
material to any work performed under this Agreement. No changes of personnel will be made by
the Contractor without prior written consent of the procuring agency of the County.
Replacement of any Contractor personnel, if approved, shall be with personnel of equal ability,

ruuIIi11
1BBro, PCgbolafCount©24NM

07/ 05/ 2016 PN

111111 1111 1111111101 31 1111111 11111 111 IIII 311 11111 1111111 111 0111// 11 X111



experience and qualifications.  The Contractor will be responsible for any expenses incurred in
familiarizing the replacement personnel to insure their being productive to the project
immediately upon receiving assignments.   Approval of replacement personnel shall not be

unreasonably withheld. The procuring agency of the County shall retain the right to request the
removal of any of the Contractor's personnel at any time.

27.      Survival.

The agreement paragraphs titled  " Patent,  Copyright,  Trademark,  and Trade Secret

Indemnification" and " Indemnification" shall survive the expiration of this agreement. Software

licenses, leases, maintenance and any other unexpired agreements that were entered into under
the terms and conditions of this agreement shall survive this agreement

28.      Succession.

This agreement shall extend to and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the
parties.

29.      Force Maieure.

A party shall be excused from performance under this agreement for any period that the
party is prevented from performing as a result of an act of God, strike, war, civil disturbance,
epidemic, or court order, provided that the party has prudently and promptly acted to take any
and all steps that are within the party' s control to ensure performance.  Subject to this provision,

such non-performance shall not be deemed a default or a ground for termination.

30.      Mediation.

In the event a dispute arises as to the rights and obligations among the parties hereto, the
parties agree to attempt to resolve the dispute through mediation as a condition precedent to

seeking legal and equitable remedies.   The parties agree to evenly split the costs of any such
mediation services.  The parties shall mutually agree upon the choice of mediator.  In the event

the parties have not agreed upon a mediator within twenty (20) days of written notice to the other
regarding the dispute, then a list of seven potential mediators will be obtained from the New
Mexico Association of Counties and the parties shall utilize a striking process until a mediator is
agreed upon.

31.      Notice to Proceed.

It is expressly understood that this Agreement is not binding upon the County until it is
executed by the Board of County Commissioners after voting on the contract at a public meeting.
Further, the Contractor is not to proceed with its obligations under the Agreement until the

Contractor has received a fully signed copy of the Agreement.

32.      Attorney' s Fees.
In the event this Agreement results in dispute,  mediation,  litigation,  or settlement

between the parties to this Agreement, the prevailing party of such action shall NOT be entitled
to an award of attorneys' fees and court costs.

201601285 Page 7of11B: 024 P. 05666 07105/ 2016 © 1: 26 PM
1    \     I\      III

Bro

IIIII



33.      Cooperation.

All parties hereto will fully cooperate with the other and their respective counsel,
accountant, and agents in connection with any steps required to be taken under this Agreement.

34.      Incorporation and Order of Precedence.

Request for Proposals No. 2016- 04- 01 and the contractor's proposal are incorporated by
reference into this agreement and are made a part of this agreement. In the event of any conflict
among these documents, the following order ofprecedence shall apply:

1.       Any contract amendment(s), in reverse chronological order; then

2.       this contract itself; then

3.       the Request for Proposals; then

4.       the Contractors Best and Final Offer(s), in reverse chronological order; then

5.       the contractor' s proposal; then

6.       the contractor's standard agreement terms and conditions (which may or may not
have been submitted as part of the contractor's proposal).

35.      Patent, Copyright, Trademark and Trade Secret Indemnification.

A.       The contractor shall defend, at its own expense, the County of Cibola against any
claim that any product or service provided under this agreement infringes any patent, copyright
or trademark in the United States or Puerto Rico, and shall pay all costs, damages and attorneys'
fees that a court finally awards as a result of any such claim.   In addition, if any third party
obtains a judgment against the County of Cibola based upon the contractor's trade secret
infringement relating to any product or service provided under this agreement, the contractor
agrees to reimburse the County of Cibola for all costs, attorneys' fees and the amount of the
judgment.  To qualify for such defense and/ or payment, the County of Cibola shall:

i. gives the contractor prompt written notice of any claim;

ii.       allow the contractor to control the defense or settlement of the claim; and

iii.      cooperate with the contractor in a reasonable way to facilitate the defense or
settlement of the claim.

B.       If any product or service becomes, or in the contractor's opinion is likely to
become the subject of a claim of infringement, the contractor shall at its option and expense:

i. provide a procuring agency of the County the right to continue using the product
or service;

ii.       replace or modify the product or service so that it becomes non-infringing; or

iii.      accept the return of the product or service and refund an amount equal to the

depreciated value of the returned product or service, less the unpaid portion of the purchase price

and any other amounts which are due to the contractor.  The contractor's obligation will be void

201601285
Clerrk7a©d / Reco©Recorder

26 PM
der

1111111111 111111 111111111 111111111 1111111111 I I I1 1111 11111 11111 1111111 III 11111 O i l I I I



as to any product or service modified by the procuring agency of the County to the extent such
modification is the cause of the claim.

36.      Insurance.

Contractor agrees to maintain in full force throughout the duration of the Agreement a

premises liability insurance policy with a minimum coverage of$ 1, 000,000.00 per occurrence/
2, 000,000.00 aggregate.  Contractor additionally agrees to maintain in full force throughout the

duration of the Agreement a general commercial liability insurance policy with a minimum
coverage of$ 1, 000,000.00 per occurrence/$ 2,000,000.00 aggregate.

37.      Notices.

Any notice required to be given to either party by this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be delivered in person, by courier service or by U.S. mail, either first class or certified,
return receipt requested, postage prepaid, as follows:

To the County: Frances Medina, Cibola County Certified Purchasing Officer // 515 West High

Street// Grants, NM 87020

S(   L r n koc
To the Contractor: [ insert name and address].

N( til EA0 5

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date of
signature by the Board of County Commissioners below.

By:     11._ Date:   7/ 54,
Shern achirisky

Printed Name:aQr r 1  - Kosh i r t s tc.
J

Address: 6—b I LA—.):),slit i      + On

B}     Date:

Certified Purchasing Officer

Printed Name: Frances Medina Address: 515 West High Street Grants, NM 87020

201601285 Pag of18. 

t0244 Cle6rkaand/

RecoOrder01
26 PM

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIVIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIVIIIVIIIIIIIIIIIIIVIIIIIIIIIII



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

PPROVED, AD S '     D AND PASSED on this  . 2 day of   ,,\ u r 2016.

Lt.T f

Robert Armijo alter Jar_ ._417V %-
111111."--"

Commissioner, District I ommissioner  . istrict II

Jac oleres Pat Simpson       (

A-

11r-
ommissioner, District III Commissioner, District IV

A COQ ,,    ABSENT

M.•
01Y

Lloyd Felipe

SEAL  • Commissioner, District V
7-N

9,•      

No.%%%%%

Attest:

E Lis Bro

Cibola County Clerk

201601285 Page 10of11B. 024 P: 05669 07/ 05/ 2016 01. 26 PM
Elise Bro; Cibola County, NM Clerk and Recorder

1111111 III 111111 IIII 111111111111111 III 111111111



SCOPE OF WORK:

Building Maintenance/Care Evening Open o•

Gym/Computer Lab

Evening Building
Supervision/Custodial

o Building Operations       •   

administrative Overhead

Baby Class Bdbk Keeping/ Payroll
I     •    Conducted once a week for      •

1- hour prep for each class o Youth

Coalition

Weekly
Meetings

Dances

o Halloween

Carnival

o Kids in Motion After Prom

Breakfast

I     •    After School Recreation

Summer Youth Programs 2: 45-5: 30 pm

Sports& Games

Computer Lab/Homework

Assistance Youth Mentoring
5 youth) per year Board

Games

FiPICd Trims 3xavPar

Monday- Art
Tuesday- Earth Club
Wednesday- Fitness Activities
Thursday-Gardening
Friday-Cooking/ Nutrition

DailySnack

Summer Youth

Employment Training

11weeks inthe Summer

201601285 Page 11of11B: 024 P: 05670 07/ 05/ 2016 01: 26 PM
Elise Bro, Cibola County, NM Clerk and Recorder

11111111 111 111111 1 1111 1111 1111111111 1111 1111111111111 111 111 111111 1111 III 111 1111 ill



 
CIBOLA COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
RESOLUTION №. 17-04 

 

RESTRUCTURE OF THE CIBOLA COUNTY COMMISSION 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola County, met in a meeting on 

January 26, 2017, at 5:00 pm in the Cibola County Commission Chamber, 700 East Roosevelt 

Ave. Suite 50, Grants, NM 87021; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of Commissioners has considered the 
appointment of a Chair of the County Commission, a 1st Vice-Chair, and a 2nd Vice 
Chair; upon motions duly made and seconded has voted by majority and appointed its 
Chair, 1st Vice-Chair, and 2nd Vice Chair in its meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the County Commission 
appoints and names as Chairs of the Commission: 

 
Jack Moleres, as Chair of the Commission; 
 
Robert Armijo, as First Vice Chair of the Commission; 
 
Robert Windhorst, as Second Vice Chair of the Commission 

 
 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 26th day of January, 2017. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

______________________________      ______________________________ 
JACK MOLERES, CHAIRMAN          ROBERT ARMIJO, 1ST VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

 

_______________________________      ______________________________ 
ROBERT WINDHORST, 2ND VICE CHAIRMAN      MARTHA GARCIA, COMMISSIONER 
 

 

___________________________  

DANIEL TORREZ, COMMISSIONER 

 
ATTEST BY:   

 

 

____________________________________ 

MICHELLE E. DOMINGUEZ, COUNTY CLERK 



Cibola County Commission    Cibola County 

Jack P. Moleres, Chairman 515 West High Street 
Grants, New Mexico 87020 
Phone (505) 287-9431 – Fax (505) 285-5434 

 

Robert J. Armijo, 1st Vice-Chair 

Robert S. Windhorst, 2nd Vice-Chair 

Daniel J. Torrez, Commissioner  

Martha Garcia, Commissioner  Tony M. Boyd  

  County Manager 

 

 
 

Resolution No. 17-07 

 

Fiscal Year 2017 

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT No. 2 

 

WHEREAS,  the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Cibola is the duly constituted 

governing body of the County and serves ex officio as the County Board of Finance 

with authority for establishing, monitoring, and adjusting the County’s budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, budget adjustments are required to establish new transfers; to allow for budget 

increases and decreases to revenues and expenditures to offset any unanticipated 

revenues and/or expenditures; and to correct amounts when required; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the budget adjustments and the associated line items with amounts stated on the 

attached, Schedule of Budget Adjustments is essential. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS of 

the COUNTY OF CIBOLA, STATE OF NEW MEXICO, ex officio COUNTY BOARD OF 

FINANCE that the adjustments included in this document are deemed necessary to the operations 

of the County for the 2017 fiscal year ending June 30, 2017.  
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the governing body at its regular meeting on the 26th 

day of January 2017. 
 

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 

 

       ________________  

 Jack P. Moleres, Chairman 

 

     _______________    

 Robert J. Armijo, 1st Vice-Chair 
ATTEST: 

      _______________   

  Robert S. Windhorst, 2nd Vice-Chair 

_______________________________ 

Michelle E Dominguez, County Clerk    _______________     

 Daniel J. Torrez, Member 

 

       ________________   

 Martha Garcia, Member 

 



Department of Finance and Administration

Local Government Division

Financial Management Bureau

SCHEDULE OF BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

REVISED 12/08/06 For Local Government Division use only:

ENTITY NAME:

FISCAL YEAR:

DFA Resolution Number:

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F) (G)

REVENUE

ENTITY EXPENDITURE APPROVED ADJUSTMENT ADJUSTED

RESOULUTION FUND TRANSFER (TO or FROM) BUDGET BUDGET PURPOSE

NUMBER

17-07 203 EXPENDITURE $55,000 $60,000 $115,000 Increase expenditures to use carry over funds

$0

17-07 209 REVENUE $669,083 $600,000 $1,269,083 Increase in expenditures and revenue for grant money that was awarded.

17-07 209 EXPENDITURE $1,355,040 $600,000 $1,955,040

$0

17-07 101 EXPENDITURE $1,023,543 $30,000 $1,053,543 Increase to cover animal control missing from original budget

$0

17-07 218 TRANSFER TO $30,825 $102,950 $133,775 Temporary transfer to cover expenses till reimbursment is received.

17-07 101 TRANSFER FROM $3,649,859 $102,950 $3,752,809

$0

17-07 101 TRANSFER TO $807,939 $102,950 $910,889 Budget transfers back after reimbursment is received.

17-07 218 TRANSFER FROM $0 $102,950 $102,950

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

ATTEST:

Title (Date) Mayor/Board Chairman (Date)

2016-2017

Cibola County



Cibola County 

Resolution # 17-12 

 

 
Whereas, the undersigned are the duly elected and qualified members of the governing body of Cibola County; and 

 

Whereas, the maintained mileage of County roadways is the responsibility of the Board of the Commissioners; and 

 

Whereas, the health and safety of their patrons is of the highest priority; and 

 

Whereas, the New Mexico Department of Transportation has notified Cibola County of the 2017 Annual Certified 

County Maintained Mileage Report 

 

Whereas, total mileage for Cibola County Maintained Roads for 2017 is 363.459 Miles 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Cibola County submits its 2017 Annual 

Certified County Maintained Mileage Report. 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS _______________ DAY OF ___________________, 2017. 

 

 

THE CIBOLA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

____________________________________   ___________________________________________ 

Jack Moleres, Chairman      Gary Porter, Cibola County Public Works Director 

 

____________________________________ 

Robert Armijo, 1st Vice Chair 

 

____________________________________ 

Robert Windhorst, 2nd Vice Chair 

 

____________________________________ 

Martha Garcia, Commissioner     Attest: 

 

____________________________________   __________________________________ 

Daniel Torrez, Commissioner     Michelle Molina-Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk 



County Maintained Route Description
For Annual Certified County Maintained Mileage Report

County Cibola County 2017

i ype or

Roadway
Surface

FROM:       TO:   Mileage Total    ( Refer to

Length of Roadway Codes at
Route Beginning Ending Maintained Width( In bottom

Route Name Number Termini Termini Section feet)       left)      Comments:

Marquez Road C- 1 JCT. SR 279 and C- 1 Sandoval County Line 17.208 44 1 & 2 1 mi Paved/ 16.208 mi Graveled

Rio Puerco Road C- 2 JCT. C- 1 and C- 2 Sandoval County Line 3.234 23 3

Piedra Lumbre Road C-4 JCT. C- 1 and C- 4 Gate South of Joe Chavez Ranch 4. 991 23 3

Moquino& Bibo Loop C- 5 JCT. SR. 279 and C- 5 Moquino Bus Turn Around 6. 553 24 1

Seboyeta- Bibo- Moquino- Roads C-6 C- 5 and La Joya Lane, End of SR 279 Marquez Residence, Portales Shrine 4.834 24 2

Cubero Loop& Village Roads C- 7 La Villa Trading Post To Elementary School then to JCT. SR. 124 7. 166 24 1

Encinal Cubero Road C- 8 Fire Station Cattle Guard- Encinal- Cubero Property Line 2.486 26 1

Water Canyon Road C- 9 JCT. C- 8 Cattle guard before Game Ranch Entrance 4. 095 23 3

N. Castillos Road C- 10 JCT. C- 8 End of Road 2. 905 24 1, 2, 3    . 40 Paved/ 2. 5 Graveled

Seco Canyon Road C- 10A Intersection of N. Castiillo Road Property Line 0. 912 22 1

Bibo Ranch Road C- 11 S. of JCT. SR. 124, W. of La Villa Gate at end of road 0.636 24 2

De Armond Springs Road C- 12 N. of JCT. SR. 124 W. of La Villa Cattle Guard at end of road 0.698 33 2

San Jose Loop C- 13 N. of JCT. SR. 124 at San Fidel E. of Black Mound Garage 3.817 22 2

San Fidel Village C- 14 S. of Church JCT. SR. 124 End of Road 0.470 26 1

Canada Road C- 14A SR. 124 at Exit 96 North Side W. to end of road 1. 908 28 1

Acoma Road C- 14B Intersection SR 124 W. of San Fidel End of Maintenance 0. 360 22 1

Rinconada Road C- 15 N. or JCT. SR 124 at Chief Rancho Cattle Guard Beginning of FR400 5. 053 33 2

Mt. Taylor Addition Roads C- 17 N. of JCT. SR. 117 across from jail Loop around to E. JCT. SR. 117 3. 432 24 1

Walter Road C- 17A E. Side Exit 85 E. Grants To end of road 0. 952 24 1

Horace Mesa Road C18 E. JCT. SR. 547 Lobo Canyon JCT. of C- 18A 0.471 24 1

Lobo Creek Road C- 18A Lobo Canyon Fire Dept.    Bus Turn Around 0. 724 24 1

La Jara Mesa Road C- 18B W. of JCT. SR. 547 Bus Turn Around 0. 838 26 1

Cantina Road C- 19 N. of JCT. SR. 547 Bus Turn Around 1. 016 26 1

Cantina Homesites Road C- 19A N. of JCT. SR. 547 Bus Turn Around 0. 244 20 1

La Mosca Tank Road C- 19B End of Pavement Boy Scouts Camp 5. 163 36 2

San Mateo Roads C- 20 E. of JCT. 605 by Fire Station Loops N. to cattleguard 4. 982 26 1, 2 3. 982 Paved/ 1. 0 Graveled

Murray Acres C- 21 N. of JCT Pasture LN& Malpais RD JCT. of C- 22 2. 333 24 1

Broadview Acres C- 22 JCT. N. of Republic Supply Intersection of Ridge Runner 2. 976 24 1

Ralph Card Road C- 23 Green Valley Trailer Park JCT. SR. 605 End of Murray Acres Road 3. 113 30 1

Nursery Road C- 23A JCT. of C-23 N. of Feed Silos Railroad Crossing 1. 628 24 1

Stanley Card Road C- 23B Intersection of Ralph Card Road End of Road 0. 296 24 1

St. Jude Drive C- 23C Intersection of Ralph Card Road Intersection of Barbara Drive 0. 520 24 1

Gail Drive C- 23D Intersection of Ralph Card Road Intersection of Barbara Drive 0. 320 24 1

Elaine Drive C- 23E Intersection of Ralph Card Road Intersection of Gail Drive 0. 126 24 1

Barbara Drive C- 23F Interesection of Ralph Card Road End of Road 0. 845 24 1, 2     . 222 Paved/. 622 Graveled

Elkins Road C- 24 C& E Concrete Plant Milan Village Limits 1. 179 24 1

Page 1 of 3



Tietjen Road, Berryhill Road, Forest Park Ave,

Head Street C-24A Intersection of Elkins Road Milan Village Limits 0.719 23 1

Bell Road C-25 Gunderson Oil Cattle Guard- End of Road 2. 539 26 2

Champman Road C-25A RR. Tracks Intersection of SR. 122 End of Road 0.951 24 2

Roberts Road C-25B Old Bluewater Inn SR. 122 Bluewater Village 1. 222 24 1

Golden Acres Roads C- 26 Casa San Jose Intersesection SR. 122 0.605 20 1

Vida Buena Road C-27 Intersection SR. 122 W. of Milan End of Road 0.705 20 1

Bluewater Village C- 28 Exit 72 and SR. 122 All Roads In Bluewater Village 4.885 24 1

Plano Colorado Frontage Road C- 28A Exit 72( South Side) JCT. to Plano 2.640 26 1

Farm Road C-28B JCT. C- 28 First Right Turn 0. 196 21 2

Cemetery Road C-28C Intersection of Main Street Intersection of Roberts Road 1. 431 24 1

Plano Colorado C-29 JCT. C- 28A Bus Turn Around 3.482 24 1, 2 1 mi Paved/ 2. 482 Graveled

Old Bluewater Acres Road C-29A JCT. C- 28A End of Road 1. 700 20 2

Bluewater South C- 30 Intersection SR. 612 All Roads in Bluewater Acres 6. 588 20 1, 2 3. 85 mi Paved/ 2. 74 Graveled

Bluewater North C- 31 N Bluewater State Park McKinley County Line 0.770 20 1

Zuni Trail C- 32 Intersection SR. 36 Arizona State Line 27. 111 20 3

Candy Kitchen Road C- 33 Ramah Chapter Boundary Intersection SR. 36 15. 125 20 2, 3 5 Graveled/ 10. 125 Dirt

Pine Hill Road C- 34 South Ramah Chapter Boundary Intersection SR. 36 9.744 20 2

Fence Lake Community Roads C- 35 Fence Lake Fire Dept.      All roads in Fence Lake Community 9.064 20 3

Moreno Hill Road C- 35A Fence Lake Fire Dept. South Catron County Line 10.419 24 2

White Hill Road C- 35B Fence Lake Fire Dept. West End of Road 1. 989 24 3

Bell Road C- 35C Intersection C- 35A Intersection SR. 36 2.997 22 3

W. Homestead Road C- 35D Intersection SR. 36 End of Road 2. 949 22 3

Mcjunction Road C- 35E Intersection SR. 36 End of Road 3.460 24 3

Monday Road C- 35F Intersection SR. 36 First Cattle Guard 1. 491 22 3

Plumasano Basin Road C- 37 intersection SR. 36 End of Road 1. 503 20 3

O' Dells Ranch Road C- 38 Intersection SR. 36 E. of Fire Dept. Property Line 3. 150 24 3

Woodard Ranch Road C-40 Intersection SR. 117 N. W.  Property Line 1. 875 24 3

Pietown Road C- 41 Intersection SR. 117 South Catron County Line 10.714 24 2

Back Country Byway C-42 Intersection SR. 117 North Intersection SR. 53 at Ice Caves 36.087 22 3

Porter Ranch Road C-44 Intersection SR. 53 S. San Rafael End of Road 1. 330 22 2

Camino De Turquesa C-45 Intersection SR. 53 Intersection Tephra RD 0.312 22 2

Mesa Ridge Road C-47 Intersection SR. 53 S.      James Property Line 7. 148 20 3

Obe Worthen Mesa Road C-47A Intersection SR. 53 Cattle Guard at Property Line 1. 158 20 3

2 Mi up Canyon Road, Intersection SR. 53 Across

Mallery Road C-48 Trailer Park To South Property Line then to BIA 135 13.229 20 2

Timberlake Road ( Old Forest Road 157)       C-48A Intersection SR. 53 East of Ramah McKinley County Line 16.400 22 2, 3 5 Mi Graveled/ 11. 400 Dirt Roadway
Zuni Canyon Road Grants C-49 Grants City Limits Intersection of Forest Road 50 15.427 24 1, 2 2 Mi Paved/ 13. 427 Graveled

Parsons Lane C-49A Interseciton C- 49 and Quail Run Trailer Park Intersection Betty Lane 0.492 20 1

El Saguan Loop C-49B Intersection C- 49 Intersection C-49 1. 162 24 3

Zuni Canyon Road C- 50 Intersection of Forest Road 50 Intersection SR. 53 and Ice Caves 4. 366 20 2

N. Quail Lane C- 51 Milan Village Limits S. of Airport Across C-49 to End of Road 0. 736 20 1

N. Lawrence Road C- 51A Intersection C- 49 at housing End of Road 0.835 18 1

Betty Drive C- 51 B Intersection C- 49A West of Rodeo Grounds 0.540 22 1

Rodeo Ground Road C- 51C Intersection SR. 53 South End of Road 0.777 21 1

El Gallo Road C- 52 Intersection SR. 53 South End of Road to West and End of Road to South 0.840 20 2

Salazar Loop C- 53 Intersection SR. 53 Loop Back to SR. 53 0. 627 20 1

Valdez Subdivision C- 54 Intersection SR. 53 S. San Rafael End of Road 0.282 20 1

Fort Wingate Road C- 54A Intersection SR. 53 End of Road 0.828 20 1, 2     . 5 Mi Paved/. 33 Gravel

Ben Chavez Loop C- 55 Intersection SR. 53 Loop Back to SR. 53 0.994 20 1

Otero Acres C- 56 Intersection SR 53 End of Road 0. 592 20 1

Page 2 of 3



La Vega Estates Roads C- 56A Intersection SR 53 End of Pavement of Calle De San Rafael 0.348 22 1

Vista Del Monte Roads C-56B Intersection of SR 53 Loop Back to SR. 53 0.470 28 1

E. Circle/ W. Circle C- 57 Intersection SR. 53 Loop Back to SR. 53 0.910 22 1

San Rafael Village C-58 Intersection SR. 53 All Village Roads 4. 068 20 1

Dwight Small Road C-59 Intersection SR. 53 N. of Mesita Store End of Property Line 1. 030 24 1

Cibola Sands Loop C- 59A Intersection SR. 53 Mile Post 85. 181 Loop to Mile Post 85.488 0.384 22 1

Clark Road C-59B Interesection of C- 59 End of Road 0.608_    18 2

Camino De Belinda C- 59C Interesection of C- 59 End of Road 0. 301 21 1

Camino De Silvestre C- 59D Interesection of C- 59 End of Road 0.480 21 1

Camino De Maria C-59E Intersection of C- 59D End of Road 0.304 23 2, 3     . 2 Mi Gravel/. 1 Mi Dirt

Paxton Springs Road C-62A   _ Intersection C- 49 Intersection SR. 53 3. 578 20 3

Anaconda Road C- 63 Anaconda Mill Intersection SR. 605 5.931 24 2

Alamo Road C- 81 Valencia County Line on SR. 6 Cattle Guard, 1 mi. passed Harrington Ranch 6.965 22 3

Saint Anthony Mine C- 86 Intersection C- 1 Gate at Mine Site 2. 800,    22 3

Forest Road 50 Forest 50 Last Cattle Guard before County Line County Line 2.611 20 3

TOTAL MILEAGE 363.459

TOTAL ROADS 100.000_

CODES FOR SURFACE TYPE:

1 = Paved Roadway
2= Graveled Roadway
3= Dirt Roadway
4= Other Surface Type

NOTE: On column 5,( Mileage length of Maintained Section); report mileage or section of route that is actually being maintained by the county.
If the route is longer than what is being maintained, Do Not Report the Total length.

Page 3 of 3



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

 

 
 

CIBOLA COUNTY 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION 17-13 

 

INSPECTION OF PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola County, met in a meeting on 

January 26, 2017, at 5:00 pm in the Cibola County Commission Chamber, 700 East Roosevelt 

Ave. Suite 50, Grants, NM 87021; and, 

 

 

Whereas, Section 14-2-7 of the Inspection of Public Records Act (NMSA 1978, Section 

14-2-1 to –12) states that each public body shall designate at least one custodian of public 

records who shall:  Receive and respond to requests to inspect public records, provide proper and 

reasonable opportunities to inspect public records, and provide reasonable facilities to make or 

furnish copies of the Public Records during usual business hours; 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Cibola County Commission that it 

designates the Recording and Filing Deputy Clerk as its custodian of public records.   

 

 

The Recording and Filing Deputy Clerk shall: 

 

1. Receive and respond to requests to inspect County Commission public 

records. 

 

2. Provide proper and reasonable opportunities to inspect County Commission 

public records. 

 

3. Provide reasonable facilities to make or furnish copies of County Commission 

public records during usual business hours. 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 26th day of January, 2017. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

______________________________   ______________________________ 
JACK MOLERES, CHAIRMAN     ROBERT ARMIJO, 1ST VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 
ROBERT WINDHORST, 2ND VICE CHAIRMAN   MARTHA GARCIA, COMMISSIONER 

 

 

___________________________  

DANIEL TORREZ, COMMISSIONER 

 
ATTEST BY:   

 

 

____________________________________ 

MICHELLE E. DOMINGUEZ, COUNTY CLERK 
 



 1  

 

RESOLUTION  17- 14  

APPROVING THE TITLE VI PROGRAM 

 

WHEREAS, the Cibola County Board of Commissioners is duly-elected and governing 

body of Cibola County; 

  

WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) of the United States Department 

of Transportation (USDOT) requires the submission of a Title VI Program once every three 

years; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached Title VI Program has been prepared to meet that requirement 

in order to ensure the continuation of the receipt of FTA funding.  

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CIBOLA COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSONERS THAT: 

 

Section 1. The Cibola County Board of Commissioners hereby approves the attached Title VI 

Program (Exhibit A) and all subsequent modifications required by the Federal Transit 

Administration. 

 

Section 2. The Cibola County Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the implementation of 

the proposed Title VI Program. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 26th day of January, 2017. 
 

      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 
 
                                                            _________ ________ 
      Jack Moleres, Chairman 
 
                                                       ___________________________________ 
      Robert Armijo, 1St Vice-Chairman 
 

      ________________________________ 
      Robert Windhorst, 2nd Vice-Chairman 
 
                



 2  

      ________________________________ 
      Daniel Torrez, Commissioner 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Martha Garcia, Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 
Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk 



Page 1 of 2
 

 
 

CIBOLA COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION 17-15  

 

BENEFITS & SALARIES OF APPOINTED OFFICIALS 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola County, met in a meeting on 

January 26, 2017, at 5:00 pm in the Cibola County Commission Chamber, 700 East Roosevelt 

Ave. Suite 50, Grants, NM 87021; and, 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 10-1-13 (C) (2012) provides in pertinent part that 

“[e]ach county officer shall appoint a deputy or clerk, as allowed by law, who shall take the oath 

of office required of the appointing county officer and shall receive salary as provided by law;” 

and, 

 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-41-5 (1975) provides that “[t]he sheriffs in all the 

counties of this state shall have power to appoint deputies, who shall remain in office at the 

pleasure of such sheriffs; except that in counties which have established a merit system by 

ordinance, the provisions of the ordinance shall control the demotion and discharge of deputies 

and other employees of the sheriff's office, except for one under-sheriff and an executive 

secretary, both of whom shall hold exempt positions;” and, 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Undersheriff, the Sheriff’s Executive Secretary and chief deputies of 

elected officials are appointed by the respective elected officials and not subject to the terms of 

the County’s Personnel Policy Ordinance; and,  

 

WHEREAS, in order to provide clear guidance to County Administrative Personnel & 

Payroll Staff the Board of County Commissioners has determined that it is necessary, to clarify 

and restate the conditions of employment and the salary & benefits afforded to Undersheriff, the 

Sheriff’s Executive Secretary and chief deputies of elected officials.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Cibola County Board of 

Commissioners that: 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

1. The Undersheriff, the Sheriff’s Executive Secretary and chief deputies of elected officials 

(hereinafter referred to as “Appointed Officials”) may be appointed at the sole discretion 

of the respective elected official and are terminable at will.   

 

2. The Appointed Officials are FLSA Exempt positions, do not accumulate sick or annual 

leave and are required to work at time, place and manner directed by their respective 

elected official. 

 

3. Appointed Officials must participate in PERA, unless specifically excluded by the Public 

Employee Retirement Association per law, and are subject the all federal and state wage 

withholding requirements.  

 

4. The salary rate of the Appointed Officials shall be as follows: 

 

 

 Experience Compensation  

a. 4 Years or Less of Employment with the Respective County 

Office or Equivalent 

70% of the Elected 

Official’s Salary 

b. 4-6 Years of Employment with the Respective County Office 80% of the Elected 

Official’s Salary 

c. More than 6 Years of Employment with the Respective County 

Office 

90% of the Elected 

Official’s Salary 

 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 26th day of January, 2017. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

______________________________   ______________________________ 
JACK MOLERES, CHAIRMAN     ROBERT ARMIJO, 1ST VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 
ROBERT WINDHORST, 2ND VICE CHAIRMAN   MARTHA GARCIA, COMMISSIONER 
 

 

___________________________  

DANIEL TORREZ, COMMISSIONER 
 

ATTEST BY:   

 

____________________________________ 

MICHELLE E. DOMINGUEZ, COUNTY CLERK 



 

 

 

 
 

CIBOLA COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION №. 17-16 

 

PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURES & ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola County, met in a meeting on 

January 26, 2017, at 5:00 pm in the Cibola County Commission Chamber, 700 East Roosevelt 

Ave. Suite 50, Grants, NM 87021; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners will conduct their meetings using 

Robert’s Rules of Order (10th ed.) as a guide to parliamentary authority, except as modified by this 

document; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioner has five elected Commissioners, and 

collectively, set policy for Cibola County outside of incorporated areas; and,  

 

WHEREAS, collectively, the Board of County Commissioners, through simple majority, 

elect a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Second Vice-Chairperson from among themselves, 

whose terms last until the first meeting of the next year; and, 

 

WHEREAS, individually, the Board of County Commissioners are equal in their authority 

to represent the entire County; and, 

 

WHEREAS, to give equal representation for all five members of the Commission is 

appropriate to adopt special rules modifying Robert’s Rules of Order. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of County Commissioners 

incorporates the above recitals, to be made a part of this resolution with the same force and effect 

as the remainder of this document. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners adopt the 

following “Special Rules” modifying Robert’s Rules of Order for the purpose of conducting 

business during the meetings of the Board: 

 

1. The Chairperson may make motions and shall have the same voting rights, no less and no 

more, as any other member of the Board. 



 

 

2. The Chairperson shall not have any administrative, procedural, contractual or similar 

authority different than any other member of the Board, except as provided by statute. 

3. Should the Chairperson vacate the office of Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall serve 

the remainder of the term, and the Second Vice-Chairperson shall serve as Vice-

Chairperson for the remainder of the term. 

4. Members of the Board are required to obtain the floor (i.e., must be recognized by the 

Chairperson) before making motions or speaking. 

5. Any and all motions need to have a second before a vote may be taken. 

6. Items appearing on the agenda of meetings of the Board shall be those necessary for the 

proper consideration and management of County business, as determined by the County 

Manager.  Additionally, the County Manager shall place any item necessary for the proper 

consideration and management of County business requested by any individual member of 

the Board of County Commissioners on the agenda for the meetings of the Board.  

7. The presiding Chairperson at a meeting of the Board is declared to be the lawful custodian 

of the building where the meeting is conducted pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 30-20-13 

(C) (1981).  

 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 26th day of January, 2017. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

_________________________________   ______________________________ 

JACK MOLERES, CHAIRMAN     ROBERT ARMIJO, 1ST
 VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

 

__________________________________   _____________________________ 

ROBERT WINDHORST, 2ND
 VICE CHAIRMAN   MARTHA GARCIA, COMMISSIONER 

 

 

___________________________  

 DANIEL TORREZ, COMMISSIONER 

ATTEST BY:   

 

 

____________________________________ 

MICHELLE E. DOMINGUEZ, COUNTY CLERK 

 

 



January 9, 2017 

 

RESOLUTION NO.17-17 

 

A RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE PROPOSED 

INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS ENTITLED CIBOLA 

COUNTY, NEW MEXICO TAXABLE INDUSTRIAL 

REVENUE BONDS (Route 66 Solar Energy Center, LLC 

PROJECT), SERIES 2017; DECLARING THE INTENT 

OF CIBOLA COUNTY TO ISSUE SUCH INDUSTRIAL 

REVENUE BONDS IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT UP TO $75,000,000 IN CONNECTION WITH 

A PROPOSED PROJECT LOCATED WITHIN THE 

BOUNDARIES OF CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF INDUCING NEXTERA 

ENERGY RESOURCES, LLC TO DEVELOP THE 

PROJECT SITE AND TO CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL 

THE PROJECT; AND DIRECTING THE COUNTY 

CLERK TO PUBLISH NOTICE OF INTENT TO 

CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 

ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE BONDS IN A 

NEWSPAPER OF GENERAL CIRCULATION WITHIN 

THE COUNTY. 

 

 WHEREAS, the New Mexico (“State”) legislature has passed the “County 

Industrial Revenue Bond Act” (the “Act”), Sections 4-59-1 to 4-59-16 inclusive, NMSA 

1978, as amended, which authorizes Cibola County, New Mexico (the “County”) to issue 

industrial revenue bonds and to acquire project as defined in the Act; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County desires to promote industry and develop trade by inducing 

manufacturing, industrial and commercial enterprises to locate in the County promoting 

the agricultural products and natural resources of the County and to secure and maintain a 

balanced and stable economy in the County and to promote public health, safety, security, 

and the general welfare of the citizens of the County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, NextEra Energy Resources, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 

company, made a proposal to the County (the “Proposal”) whereby the County will acquire 

from Route 66 Solar Energy Center, LLC, a limited liability company formed by NextEra 

Energy Resources, LLC and to be authorized to do business in New Mexico (the 

“Company”), land and equipment located in the County which will constitute an industrial 

development project (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the issuance of its industrial revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) by the 

County to finance the Project will constitute one of the inducements whereby the Company 

will determine to proceed with the Project; and 

 



 

2 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners (the “Commission”) of the 

County constitutes the governing body of the County within the meaning of the Act; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project has been considered by the Commission and it has been 

concluded that the Project will promote the health, safety, security, and general welfare of 

the citizens of the County, and the Commission desires to indicate its intent to consider 

proceeding with the issuance of the Bonds for the financing of the Project; and 

 

 WHEREAS, concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, the Company will enter 

into an installment sale, lease or other financing agreement with the County under which 

the County will acquire the Project and which will provide for the payment of installments, 

lease rentals or other payments by the Company from the revenues generated by the Project 

or other funds of the Company sufficient to pay the debt service on the Bonds, subject to 

the prior adoption by the Commission of an ordinance approving such agreements and 

authorizing issuance of the Bonds (the “Bond Ordinance”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County and the Company understand that the adoption of this 

Resolution shall not obligate the County to issue the Bonds except in full compliance with 

the terms of the Bond Ordinance to be considered for adoption by the Commission prior to 

the issuance of the Bonds and with the terms of the related bond documents; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 4-37-7 NMSA 1978, requires that publication of the title and 

general summary of this subject matter of any proposed ordinance be made in a newspaper 

of general circulation within the County at least two weeks prior to the meeting of the 

Board of County Commissioners at which the ordinance is proposed for final passage. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS, THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE COUNTY OF CIBOLA, NEW 

MEXICO: 

 

 Section 1.  All actions (not inconsistent with the provisions hereof) heretofore taken 

by the Commission and the officers and employees of the County, related to the Proposal, 

the acquisition of the Project, and the sale and issuance of the Bonds therefor, be and the 

same hereby are ratified, approved and confirmed. 

 

 Section 2.  The Commission understands that: 

 

  (A) The Project will consist of land and equipment for solar 

photovoltaic electric generating facilities, including solar tracking hardware and software; 

photovoltaic panels and inverters; support structures; transformers and associated 

electrical generating equipment used to generate electricity from solar energy; and related 

equipment, including, without limitation, interconnection facilities, switchyard and 

generation tielines; 

 

  (B) The maximum aggregate face amount of industrial revenue bonds to 

be issued for the Project is $75,000,000, with a term of up to 30 years; 



 

3 

 

 

  (C) The developer and operator of the Project will be the Company, or 

permitted successors or assignees; 

 

  (D) The proposed Project site consists of approximately 500 acres in an 

unincorporated area of the County, and is located approximately 60 miles West of Albuquerque, 

New Mexico; 

 

(E) The development, installation and operation of the Project at the 

proposed site are subject to land-use regulation and approval by the County; 

 

(F) The Company will make all necessary arrangements with the 

proposed bond purchaser for the purchase of the Bonds and the County shall have no 

responsibility to make such arrangements; and 

 

  (G) The Company has agreed to pay or reimburse the County for all 

costs of legal counsel, including independent bond counsel and financial advisor of the 

County directly related to adoption of this Resolution, consideration and adoption of the 

Bond Ordinance and issuance of the Bonds.  The Company has agreed to such payment or 

reimbursement irrespective of whether the Bonds are issued. 

 

 Section 3.  In order to promote the health, safety, security and general welfare of the 

citizens of the County, it is the Commission’s intent to take all necessary and advisable 

steps to consider and, if appropriate, to effect the issuance of the Bonds in an aggregate 

principal amount up to $75,000,000 in order to defray part or all of the costs of the Project.  

The Bonds are to be entitled substantially as follows: “Cibola County, New Mexico 

Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (Route 66 Solar Energy Center, LLC Project), Series 

2017”, provided, however, that the Bond Ordinance may authorize a a different title and 

series  designation for the Bonds.  This expression of the Commission’s intent is subject to 

the provisions of Section 6 of this resolution and conditioned upon the issuance of the 

Bonds on or before December 31, 2019, or by such other deadline for issuance of the 

Bonds as may be provided by the Bond Ordinance or the documents executed and 

delivered in connection with issuance of the Bonds.   

 

 Section 4.  The Bonds shall be payable from the revenues of the Project or other 

moneys payable by the Company with respect thereto, and shall not constitute a debt or 

indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any provision or limitation of the 

Constitution or statutes of the State of New Mexico.  In addition, if the Bonds are issued, 

the Company  shall indemnify and hold harmless the County, the Commission and their 

respective officers, employees, designated representatives and agents (collectively, the 

“Indemnified Persons”) from and against any liability to the Company or to any third 

parties that may be asserted against the County with respect to the County’s ownership of 

or leasehold interest in the Project or the issuance of the Bonds.  Nothing contained in this 

Resolution or in any other instrument shall be considered as obligating the County to any 

pecuniary liability or a charge upon the general credit of the County or against its taxing 

power, it being understood that no costs are to be borne by the County and that all costs 

incurred by the County in connection with the Bonds are to be promptly reimbursed by the 



 

4 

 

Company.  The County’s adoption of this Resolution shall not be deemed a conclusion or 

expression of approval by the County or any Indemnified Person of the Company or the 

Project. 

 

 Section 5.  The Company, as agent for the County, will acquire the Project.  For this 

purpose, by adoption of this Resolution, the County authorizes the Company to act as agent 

for the County for the purchase of solar generation equipment used to generate electricity 

from solar and related equipment as defined in Section 7-9-54.3 NMSA 1978.  For other 

tangible personal property relating to the Project, the County will cooperate with the 

Company to obtain and allow use of Type 9 Nontaxable Transaction Certificates 

(“Certificates”) that have been properly executed for acquisition of tangible personal 

property relating to the Project as applicable under the New Mexico Gross Receipts and 

Compensating Tax Act.  The Company shall not use the Certificates other than for such 

things as may be permitted by law, if any, nor shall the Company use such Certificates after 

the completion of the Project.  Prior to the use of such Certificates by the Companys as 

agent for the County, the County Manager and the Company will agree to certain 

procedures regarding the use of the Certificates and protection of the County from any 

unpaid taxes determined to be due to the Taxation and Revenue Department.  No costs, 

expenses or other monetary relief will be recoverable from the County by vendors of solar 

generation equipment. 

 

 Section 6.  The County Commissioners and other appropriate County officials and 

employees are hereby authorized and empowered to take such steps and to do such things 

as may be necessary to achieve the purposes of this Resolution; provided, however, the 

issuance of the Bonds and the execution and delivery of any documents to which the 

County is a party in connection therewith shall be subject to the approval and authorization 

of the Commission pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, adopted following public notice of the 

Commission’s intent to adopt such Bond Ordinance at least fourteen (14) days prior to the 

consideration of the Bond Ordinance by the Commission at a public meeting, such public 

notice to specify the time, date and place of the Commission’s public hearing on the Bond 

Ordinance and the meeting at which the Bond Ordinance will be considered.  In particular, 

no provision of this Resolution shall in any way obligate the County or any other person to 

issue the Bonds, any other bonds or in any way finance the Project; and the County retains 

full and complete discretion with respect thereto. 

 

 Section 7.   If Bonds are issued by the County, the documentation evidencing the 

obligations of the Company shall provide that the Company shall make annual payments in 

lieu of taxes to the County and to the Grants-Cibola County School District for so long as 

the Bonds are outstanding. 

 

 Section 8.  This Resolution shall not give rise to a pecuniary liability of the County 

and shall not give rise to a charge against its general credit or taxing powers. 

 

 Section 9.  The County Clerk is hereby directed, in accordance with Section 4-37-7 

NMSA 1978, as amended, to publish in the Cibola County Beacon, a newspaper of general 

circulation within the County, a title and general summary of the ordinance relating to and 



 

5 

 

authorizing issuance of the Bonds at least two weeks prior to the meeting at which the 

County Commission will consider such ordinance.  The County Clerk may undertake such 

publication upon his own initiative and submittal of any necessary documents related to the 

proposed ordinance. 

 

 Section 10.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution shall 

for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of 

such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining 

provisions of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 11.  All orders and resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with this 

Resolution are hereby repealed; provided, however, this repealer shall not be construed to 

revive any order, resolution or part thereof, heretofore repealed. 

 

 Section 12.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and 

approval by the Commission. 

  



 

6 

 

PASSED, ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 26th day of January, 2017. 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, 

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 

 

        

Robert Armijo, Member 

 

        

Daniel Torrez, Member 

 

        

Jack Moleres, Member 

 

        

Robert Windhorst, Member 

 

        

Martha Garcia, Member 

 

 

 

 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Michelle E Dominguez, County Clerk 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Y:\dox\client\33660\0134\GENERAL\W2854912.DOCX 









Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 

Cibola County Ordinance 17-01 

Property Tax Rebate Benefiting Low-Income  

 Taxpayers  

PREAMBLE 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, § 7-2-14.3 (G) (2003) requires that the Board of County 

Commissioners of each County consider every odd-numbered year whether to pass an Ordinance 

rebating part of the property tax due from low-income taxpayers; and 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, § 7-2-14.3 (I) (2003), were this Ordinance to be passed, the County 

would be required to pay the amount of the loss of income tax revenue to the state for the 

previous taxable year attributable to the allowance of property tax rebates to taxpayers of Cibola 

County; and 

WHEREAS, the potential for loss to the County by virtue of it having to pay the State the 

amount of the loss of income tax revenue attributable to the allowance of property tax rebates to 

the taxpayers of Cibola County would be significant and the harm substantial provided the 

County’s very limited resources.    

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that the Board of County Commissioners of the 

County of Cibola adopts the Cibola County Property Tax Rebate Benefiting Low-Income 

Property Taxpayers Ordinance, as follows: 

ARTICLE I.  SHORT TITLE. 

     This Ordinance shall be referred to as the Cibola County Property Tax Rebate Benefiting 

Low-Income Property Taxpayers Ordinance. 

ARTICLE II.  DEFINITIONS. 

     For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following definitions shall apply unless the context 

clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 

Property Tax Liability.  The amount of property tax resulting from the imposition of the county 

and municipal property tax operating impositions on the net taxable value of the taxpayer's 

principal place of residence calculated for the year for which the rebate is claimed. 

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

Principal Place of Residence.  The dwelling owned and occupied by the taxpayer and so much 

of the land surrounding it, not to exceed five acres, as is reasonably necessary for use of the 

dwelling as a home and may consist of a part of a multidwelling or a multipurpose building and a 

part of the land upon which it is built. 

ARTICLE III.  GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

A. The tax rebate provided by this Ordinance may be claimed for the taxable year for which the 

return is filed by an individual who: 

 

(1) has his principal place of residence in Cibola County; 

(2) is not a dependent of another individual;  

(3) files a return; and  

(4) incurred a property tax liability on his principal place of residence in the taxable year.  

 

B. The tax rebate provided by this section shall be allowed for any individual eligible to claim 

the refund pursuant to Subsection A of Article III of this Ordinance and who: 

 

(1) was not an inmate of a public institution for more than six months during the taxable year;  

(2) was physically present in New Mexico for at least six months during the taxable year for 

which the rebate is claimed; and  

(3) is eligible for the rebate as a low-income property taxpayer in accordance with the provisions 

of Subsection D of Article III of this Ordinance.  

 

C. A husband and wife who file separate returns for the taxable year in which they could have 

filed a joint return may each claim only one-half of the tax rebate that would have been allowed 

on the joint return. 

 

D.  The tax rebate provided in this section is as specified in the following table: 

LOW-INCOME TAXPAYER'S PROPERTY TAX REBATE TABLE 

Taxpayer's Modified Gross Income Property Tax Rebate 

   But Not     

 Over  Over     

 $ 0  $ 8,000  75% of property tax liability 

 8,000  10,000  70% of property tax liability 

 10,000  12,000  65% of property tax liability 

 12,000  14,000  60% of property tax liability 

 14,000  16,000  55% of property tax liability 

 16,000  18,000  50% of property tax liability 

 18,000  20,000  45% of property tax liability 

 20,000  22,000  40% of property tax liability 

 22,000  24,000  35% of property tax liability. 

 

E. If a taxpayer's modified gross income is zero, the taxpayer may claim a tax rebate in the 

amount shown in the first row of the table. The tax rebate provided for in this section shall not 



Page 3 of 3 

 

exceed three hundred fifty dollars ($350) per return and, if a return is filed separately that could 

have been filed jointly, the tax rebate shall not exceed one hundred seventy-five dollars ($175). 

No tax rebate shall be allowed any taxpayer whose modified gross income exceeds twenty-four 

thousand dollars ($24,000). 

 

F. The tax rebate provided for in this section may be deducted from the taxpayer's New Mexico 

income tax liability for the taxable year. If the tax rebate exceeds the taxpayer's income tax 

liability, the excess shall be refunded to the taxpayer. 

  

G. No later than December 31 of the year immediately following the first year in which the low-

income taxpayer property tax rebate provided in the Income Tax Act is in effect for Cibola  

County, and no later than December 31 of each year thereafter in which the tax rebate is in 

effect, the Taxation and Revenue Department shall certify to Cibola  County the amount of the 

loss of income tax revenue to the state for the previous taxable year attributable to the allowance 

of property tax rebates to taxpayers of Cibola  County. The County shall promptly pay the 

amount certified to the department. If Cibola  County fails to pay the amount certified within 

thirty days of the date of certification, the department may enforce collection of the amount by 

action against the county and may withhold from any revenue distribution to the county, not 

dedicated or pledged, amounts up to the amount certified. 

  

 APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 26th day of January, 2017. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

______________________________              ______________________________ 
JACK MOLERES, CHAIRMAN     ROBERT ARMIJO, 1ST VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

 

_______________________________    ______________________________ 
ROBERT WINDHORST, 2ND VICE CHAIRMAN   MARTHA GARCIA, COMMISSIONER 
 

 

___________________________  

DANIEL TORREZ, COMMISSIONER 

 
ATTEST BY:   

 

 

____________________________________ 

MICHELLE E. DOMINGUEZ, COUNTY CLERK 

 

 



 

 

Western States Sheriffs’ Association 
Annual Conference and Training 

March 5th – March 9th ,  2017 
 

Sunday – March 5th, 2017     
 
Board Meeting and Committee meetings.  1300 – 2000 pm 
 

Monday – March 6th, 2017 
 
0800 am – Opening Session –  Key note Speaker: Mr. 
Wilford Brimley ,  Actor 
 
1200 – Golf Tournament meet at registration for departure to 
    Golf Course 
 
1200 – NRA Sponsored Shoot.  Meet at registration for   
          departure to Shooting range. 
 
1800 -  New Sheriffs and Attendee Orientation 
              
1900 – Presidents Reception and Live Entertainment 
 

Tuesday – March  7th, 2017 
 
0630 0745 am – Breakfast in Vendor Hall   Sponsor:   
 
0800 am – Training:  Community Outreach with Mobile 
                 Technology                                  
                  Room:  Grand Hall 



 

 

Western States Sheriffs’ Association 
Annual Conference 

  
0900 am – Vendor Hall Opens 

- Our Brides Day at the Mall 
 

1000 am -  Detention Specific Topics  by  National Institute     
                 Jail Operations            
                Training Room    
 
1145 am – 1330  Lunch  Provided in Exhibit Hall  Sponsored by 
Watchsystems 
 
Afternoon Training   
 
1330pm -    Detention Topics National Institute of Jails 
                  Operations  Continued 
 
1500 pm – Break in Vendor Hall  45 minutes  
 
1600pm – Mental Health in Detention Facilities 
                Training:  Grand Hall 
 
1700 pm – Vendor Hall Closes 
 

Wednesday – March 8th , 2017 
 
0630 – 0800 am – Breakfast in the Vendor Hall sponsored  
 
0830 am – Annual Business meeting  
                 Presentation by Sheriff John Whetzel   



 

 

Western States Sheriffs’ Association 
Annual Conference 

  
0900 am – Vendor Hall  opens 
 
1130 am –  Lunch in Vendor Hall – Sponsored by:    
 
  
 

Wednesday – March 8th , 2017 
 
1330 pm -  WSSA BUSINESS MEETING 
 
1500 pm – Vendor Hall Closes for 2015 
 

Thursday – March 3rd , 2016 
 
0800 am – 1030 Patron Saints of the Mexican Drug Cartel – 
Santa  
                  Muerte   Marshal Robert Almonte 
 
1100 am  1400 pm  Training:   Case Study,  Malheur Refuge 
Stand Off in Harney County Oregon.    Sheriff David Ward    
 
1430 – 1600 North Dakota Pipeline Protest Incident  Sheriff 
Kyle Kirchmeier and Sheriff Paul Laney. 
 
1600 – 1700 Round Table discussion.    

  



Cibola County Commission    Cibola County 

Jack Moleres, Chairman 
 

700 East Roosevelt Ave, Suite 50 

Grants, New Mexico 87020 
Phone (505) 287-9431 – Fax (505) 285-5434 

 

Robert Armijo, 1st Vice-Chair 

Robert Windhorst, 2nd Vice-Chair 

Daniel Torrez, Commissioner  

Martha Garcia, Commissioner  Tony M. Boyd  

  County Manager 

 

 
 
 

To:  Cibola County Commission 
 
From: Frances R Medina, CPO 
 
Date: January 23, 2017 
 
 
On the 5th of December 2016, Cibola County went out for bid on a Tanker/Pumper for 
The Cubero VFD.  The IFB was published on the website as well as in the legal of 
The Albuquerque Journal. 
 
The IFB closed at 4:00 PM MDT/MST on the 4th of January 2017.  Only one bid was 
received and presented to Chief DeSoto with the option of going back out for bid if the 
bid did not meet all conditions of the IFB.  We are seeking approval from the 
Commission to accept the bid of Midwest Fire Luverne, MN in the amount of 
$210,312.00. 
 
 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 26th day of January, 2017. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

______________________________      ______________________________ 
JACK MOLERES, CHAIRMAN          ROBERT ARMIJO, 1ST VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

 

_______________________________      ______________________________ 
ROBERT WINDHORST, 2ND VICE CHAIRMAN      MARTHA GARCIA, COMMISSIONER 
 

 

___________________________  

DANIEL TORREZ, COMMISSIONER 

 
ATTEST BY:   

 

 

____________________________________ 

MICHELLE E. DOMINGUEZ, COUNTY CLERK 
 



a. Appointment of Two Members to NWNMRSWA 

a) Meets on the third Thursday of every other odd month starting Jan, March 

etc.. at 8:30 am 

b) Current Members are Jack Moleres and Tony Boyd as Secondary 

 

b. Appointment of Two Members to NWNMCOG 

a) Please see attached Calendar 

b) Current Members are Robert Armijo and Julie Quintana 

 

c. Appointment of Two Members to Future Foundation Family Center 

a) Meets on the 1st Thursday of February, May, August, November 

b) Walter Jaramillo 

 

d. Appointment of Two Members to JJAC 

a) Meets Quarterly when quorum is met 

b) Current member Robert Armijo 

 

e. Appointment of Two Members to Economic Development 

a) Meets every other Month on the third Tuesday at 9:00 am next meeting 

will be February 21 

b) Current member Tony Boyd and Robert Armijo 

 

f. Appointment of Two Members to Cibola General Hospital Board 

a) Please see the attached schedule 

b) Current Member Robert Armijo 

 

g. Appointment of Two Members to Transit Authority 

a) No set date just when quorum is met. 

b) Current Member Tony Boyd 

 






	1 01262017 Regular Meeting
	2 Low Income Tax Ordinance Cibola  2017
	3 Minutes Reg Meeting
	4 Special Meeting
	5 Resolution 17 08 Anti Displacement
	EXHIBIT_1_R_Residential_Anti_Displacement_and_Relocation_Assistance_Plan_1-011117 (002)
	Res. 17-08 Antidisplace-011117

	6 RESOLUTION 1709 Citizen Part Plan-011117
	7 Res 1710 Section 3
	3 EXHIBIT 1-T Section 3 Plan 2017-011117
	3 Res. 17-10 Sect. 3-2017-011117

	8 Res 1711 Fair Housing
	4 EXHIBIT_1_O_1_Fair_Housing_Proclamation-2017-011117
	4 EXHIBIT_1_O_2_Fair_Housing_Self_Assessment_1-2017-011117
	4 RESOLUTION 17-11  Fair Housing Resolution CDBG 2017-011117

	9 Sheriff
	10 Detention
	10 NextEra Route 66 Solar Financing Schedule (S0066022xAB122)
	12 MAINTENANCE  FUEL REPORTS
	13 Detail Report with Activity and Encumbrance
	14 Res 1648 Use of building
	Resolution 16 48
	2 Valencia County
	20170111163815scan 1
	20170111163815scan 2
	20170111163815scan 3
	20170111163815scan 4
	20170111163815scan 5
	20170111163815scan 6
	20170111163815scan 7
	20170111163815scan 8
	20170111163815scan 9
	20170111163815scan 10
	20170111163815scan 11

	3 San Juan County
	20170111163815scan 12
	20170111163815scan 13
	20170111163815scan 14
	20170111163815scan 15
	20170111163815scan 16
	20170111163815scan 17
	20170111163815scan 18
	20170111163815scan 19
	20170111163815scan 20
	20170111163815scan 21
	20170111163815scan 22
	20170111163815scan 23
	20170111163815scan 24
	20170111163815scan 25
	20170111163815scan 26

	4 Harding County
	20170111163815scan 28
	20170111163815scan 29
	20170111163815scan 30

	5 Sandoval County
	20170111163815scan 32
	20170111163815scan 33
	20170111163815scan 34
	20170111163815scan 35
	20170111163815scan 36
	20170111163815scan 37
	20170111163815scan 38
	20170111163815scan 39

	6 Roosevelt County
	20170111163815scan 40
	20170111163815scan 41
	20170111163815scan 42
	20170111163815scan 43
	20170111163815scan 44


	15 2016 Global Correctional Group
	16 2016 Future Foundations
	17 Resolution 1704 Restructure
	18 Resolution 1707 Budget
	20 Resolution 1713 Inspection of Public  Records
	21 Resoltuion 1714 Title VI
	22 Resolution 1715 Chief Deputy Salary
	19 Res 1712 Maintained Mileage
	24 NextEra Inducement Resolution (1-9-17) (W2854912xAB122)
	25 letter Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (Route 66 Solar Energy Center Project)
	26 Low Income Tax Ordinance Cibola  2017 - Copy
	27 Conference Agenda Sheriff
	28 Bid VFD



